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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERH/S

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China
Ever Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”), | hereby
present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2024 (“2024").

During 2024, the Group's revenue from continuing operations increased
by 91.6% to HK$101.0 million as compared to that of HK$52.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (“2023"). The Group’s gross profit from
continuing operations increased by 20.0% to HK$21.3 million in 2024 as
compared to that of HK$17.8 million in 2023 and net loss from continuing
operations increased by 100.0% to HK$80.8 million in 2024 as compared to
that of HK$40.4 million in 2023.

The Group operated four segments during the year: Distribution Segment,
Manufacturing Segment, Investment Segment and Financial Leasing Segment
in the PRC and Hong Kong.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The distribution segment recorded a net loss of HK$19.3 million in 2024
(2023: HK$5.0 million). The manufacturing segment recorded a net loss of
HK$4.7 million in 2024 (2023: HK$4.6 million). The investment segment
recorded a net loss of HK$20.5 million in 2024 (2023: HK$8.5 million). The
financial leasing segment recorded a net loss of HK$14.3 million (2023: profit
of HK$2.4 million). After accounted for (i) the corporate and other expenses
and finance costs of HK$19.9 million in 2024 (2023: HK$25.8 million), (ii)
a loss arising from share of results of certain associates of HK$2.1 million in
2024 (2023: profit of HK$0.5 million), (iii) a net loss from certain unallocated
other income, gains and losses of HK$85,000 in 2024 (2023: net gain of
HK$66,000), and (iv) income tax expense of HK$19,000 in 2024 (2023:
credit of HK$0.5 million), the Group recorded a net loss from continuing
operations of HK$80.8 million (2023: HK$40.4 million) and a net loss from
continuing and discontinued operations of HK$80.8 million in 2024 (2023:
HK$37.3 million). The increase in net loss was mainly due to the shared losses
from associates, fair value loss on investment properties in the PRC, and
impairment loss on goodwill.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group will steadily expand its existing business, especially
the distribution segment and the manufacturing segment . The Group continue
to adopt a prudent approach to cautiously and diligently look for new potential
growth opportunities and business expansion in order to diversify the income
sources and attain a long-term growth.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank all our
shareholders, customers, suppliers and business partners for their unwavering
support. | also extend my heartfelt appreciation to our management and all
employees for their dedication and contribution over the past years.

Wong Lik Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2025

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERHE

RREE

RERK AEBR RS HRRAES LERED
HAEREED B - AEBEBENEROEE
SEEMEE B EIGHBEEIE RIS S REFIER
NEBRWAREZ T ERRAE R

25t

HBItHE FAZAREFTER2ERR -ZR #
EEREEGIFRHEUROEE  EMFEE
WS R e RATFR O H T EEEEEZER
B R Bk ©

EZ
ENT

BB _ECAF=FB"+7<H

Annual Report 2024
TENEFR

5



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEw R

BUSINESS REVIEW

During 2024, the Group’s revenue from continuing operations increased by
91.6% to HK$101.0 million as compared to that of HK$52.7 million for 2023.
The Group's gross profit from continuing operations increased by 20.0% to
HK$21.3 million in 2024 as compared to that of HK$17.8 million in 2023 and
net loss from continuing operations increased by 100.0% to HK$80.8 million
in 2024 as compared to that of HK$40.4 million in 2023.

The Group operated four segments during the year: Distribution Segment,
Manufacturing Segment, Investment Segment and Financial Leasing Segment
in the PRC and Hong Kong.

Distribution Segment

Distribution Segment includes production, wholesale, distribution and trading
of daily necessities, medical products, health products and hygiene products
in Hong Kong. Its revenue increased by 105.7% to HK88.4 million in 2024
as compared to that of HK$42.9 million in 2023. Such increase was mainly
due to the fact that (i) sales of health and wellness products under our own
brand increased; and (ii) sale of traditional Chinese medical products was
driven by stabilised supply from the manufacturer. This segment recorded a
net loss of HK$19.3 million in 2024, representing an increase of 288.7% as
compared to that of HK$5.0 million in 2023. The loss increase was mainly
due to an impairment loss on goodwill of HK$15.0 million recognised in
2024. The goodwill impairment loss was primarily driven by a decline in the
averaged profit margins projected in the approved five-year financial forecasts
for 2024 (2024: 6.6%; 2023: 12.7%). This decline reflects the impact of rising
operating costs — such as those associated with the sales of health products
— and slower-than-anticipated market growth influenced by shifting consumer
preferences, intensified competition, and broader economic factors. These
challenges reduced the recoverable amount as determined by the value-in-use
assessment, resulting in a deficit when compared to the carrying value of the
relevant cash-generating unit (CGU).

Manufacturing Segment

Manufacturing Segment includes manufacturing and sale of food products
and nutrient enhancers such as meal replacements partly made of
Chlamydomonas Reinhardtii and other nutrient enhancers. A brand-new
production line of healthy food products launched in the fourth quarter of
2024. During 2024, it recorded revenue of HK$6.4 million (2023: HK$2.9
million) and a net loss of HK$4.7 million (2023: HK$4.6 million). The increase
in its revenue was mainly due to broaden product diversity and customer base.
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Investment Segment

Revenue from the Investment Segment decreased by 9.7% to HK$6.2
million in 2024 as compared to that of HK$6.8 million in 2023. This segment
recorded a net loss of HK$20.5 million in 2024 as compared to that of HK$8.5
million in 2023. Such increase in loss of HK$11.9 million was mainly due to
the fair value loss on PRC investment properties of HK$21.0 million in 2024
(2023: HK$8.0 million).

Financial Leasing Segment

In 2024, Beijing Ever Grand International Financial Leasing Co. Ltd. (“BJEG”)
and its subsidiaries (“BJEG Group”), responsible for the Financial Leasing
Segment, continued as an associate of the Group for the first seven-month
period ended 31 July 2024, following its deconsolidation on 31 July 2023.
However, it was subsequently reclassified as equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) due to Director, who held
the board seat in BJEG, was no longer served for and acting for the Group
on 1 August 2024. Accordingly, the Financial Leasing Segment only reflected
its results for the first seven-month period of 2024, whereas it covered the
period from 1 August 2023 to 31 December 2023 in the comparative figures
for last year. This segment recorded a net loss of HK$14.3 million in 2024 as
compared to profit of HK$2.4 million in 2023. The loss from this associate in
2024 was mainly arising from interest costs from finance lease and the fair
value loss on financial assets at FVTPL.

After taking into account of the corporate and other expenses and finance
costs of HK$19.9 million in 2024 (2023: HK$25.8 million), a loss arising from
share of results of associates (excluding the associate under Financial Leasing
Segment) in 2024 of HK$2.1 million (2023: profit of HK$0.5 million), a net
loss from certain unallocated other income, gains and losses of HK$85,000 in
2024 (2023: the net gain of HK$66,000), income tax expense of HK$19,000
in 2024 (2023: credit of HK$0.5 million), the Group recorded a net loss
from continuing operations attributable to the owners of the Company of
HK$80.8 million (2023: HK$40.4 million) and a net loss from continuing
and discontinued operations of HK$80.8 million in 2024 (2023: HK$37.3
million). The increase in net loss from continuing operations was mainly due
to significant increase in fair value loss on investment properties in the PRC,
the poor operating performance of associates in 2024 compared with 2023
and the impairment loss on goodwill recognised in 2024 whereas no such
impairment in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEwR D

Revenue and gross profit

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations increased by 91.6% to
HK$101.0 million in 2024 as compared to that of HK$52.7 million in 2023.
The revenue from the sale of daily necessities, medical products, health
products and hygiene products increased by 105.7% to HK$88.4 million in
2024 as compared to that of HK$42.9 million in 2023. Such increase was
mainly due to the increase in sales of a traditional Chinese medical product
and the own brand healthcare products. Sales of food products and nutrient
enhancers increased by 119.8% to HK$6.4 million in 2024 as compared to
that of HK$2.9 million in 2023. Rental income from investment properties in
the PRC was increased by 6.8% to HK$6.2 million in 2024 as compared to
that of HK$5.8 million in 2023.

The Group's gross profit from continuing operations increased by 20.0% to
HK$21.3 million in 2024 as compared to that of HK$17.8 million in 2023. The
gross profit margin, however, was dropped from 33.7% in 2023 to 21.1% in
2024, because of increase in sale of products with lower gross profit margin.

Other income

Other income from continuing operations of HK$166,000 in 2024 (2023:
HK$1.8 million) was mainly from interest income from fixed bank deposits.

Other gains and losses

Other gains and losses from continuing operations in 2024 were a net loss of
HK$25.6 million (2023: HK$12.9 million), mainly comprising of the fair value
loss on investment properties of HK$21.0 million (2023: HK$8.0 million), a
gain on the disposal of Shanghai property of HK$1.1 million and a loss on
deemed disposal of associates of HK$3.4 million (2023: HK$0.7 million).

Administrative expenses and other operating expenses

The Group’s administrative and other operating expenses from continuing
operations decreased by 7.3% to HK$44.7 million in 2024 as compared to
that of HK$48.2 million in 2023. These mainly included staff costs (including
directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments) from continuing operations
of HK$22.0 million (2023: HK$24.5 million), legal and professional fees,
depreciation of property, plant and equipment and various administrative
expenses.
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Share of associates’ results

The share of results of associates amounted to a loss of HK$13.0 million in
2024 as compared with a profit of HK$2.9 million in 2023. The Group shared
a loss of BJEG of HK$11.0 million (2023: profit of HK$2.4 million), a loss of
Top Insight Holdings Limited of HK$2.2 million (2023: profit of HK$0.9 million)
and a profit of Simagi Finance Company Limited of HK$118,000 (2023: loss of
HK$0.5 million) in 2024.

Investment in BJEG Group was reclassified as equity investments at FVTOCI
on 1 August 2024 due to loss of significant influence over BJEG on that
date. For more details, please refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Income taxation

Income tax expense from continuing operations in 2024 was HK$19,000
(2023: credit of HK$479,000), mainly comprising of provision for current tax
of HK$22,000 in the PRC and over-provision for tax in 2023 of HK$3,000 in
Hong Kong.

Discontinued operation

The results of BJEG Group were classified as discontinued operation upon
deconsolidation and presented as a single line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for 2023. Net profit from discontinued operation
amounted to HK$3.1 million in 2023.

FINANCIAL POSITION

The total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2024 amounted to HK$392.5
million, representing a decrease of HK$110.3 million or 22.0% as compared
with HK$502.8 million as at 31 December 2023. The decrease in total assets
was mainly due to the fact that the fair value loss on investment properties in
the PRC, the poor operating performance of associates and an impairment loss
on goodwill in 2024. The total liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2024
amounted to HK$51.6 million, representing an increase of HK$1.7 million or
3.4% as compared with HK$49.9 million as at 31 December 2023. There was
no material change in total liabilities in 2024.

The gearing ratios (which is calculated from total liabilities over total assets)
sightly increased from 9.9% as at 31 December 2023 to 13.1% as at 31
December 2024. The current ratios (which is calculated from total current
assets over total current liabilities) decreased from 2.0 as at 31 December
2023 to 1.4 as at 31 December 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEwR D

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had cash and cash equivalents and
deposits placed with non-bank financial institutions totalling of approximately
HK$13.2 million (2023: HK$28.4 million). As at 31 December 2024, the
Group had the short-term bank borrowing amounting to HK$2.8 million (2023:
Nil).

For the year under review, the Group has financed its operations with facilities
provided by banks and other non-bank financial institutions and internally
generated cash flows.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

In the both reporting periods, the Group had no material exposure to
fluctuation in exchange rates in foreign currency as material transactions
such as revenue and cost of revenue were denominated in local currencies in
which the relevant entities operated. The Group did not enter into any foreign
exchange hedging transactions or instruments during both years.

CREDIT EXPOSURE

The Group's major credit risk is primarily attributable to loan receivables. It
is mostly derived from money lending services, namely the loan financing
services carried out by TF Advances Limited (“TF Advances”) in Hong Kong.

The loan financing services in Hong Kong
Business model

TF Advances is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and a licenced money
lender under the Money Lender Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), which principally engages in the provision of loan financing service
in Hong Kong by providing unsecured or secured loan to its customers. TF
Advances generally utilises its internal working capital as the loan principal. TF
Advances's target customers in Hong Kong include individuals and institutional
clients. Most loan transactions of TF Advances in Hong Kong are sought after
through (a) referrals from its existing customers or business partners, and (b)
business connections of the Group’s senior management.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEERENEEEERAE

BB RMBER

ATE_NE+ A=+ —H - AEEZRESR
RESEYURERNIERTSRIEEZFZRE
FH49%13,200,00078 7T (ZZ = =4F : 28,400,000
70 cRIEZNE+ A= +—H AEEIEH
RITERNA2,800,00087T (CE =4 1 ) o

REEEER > FEEDERTRAMIFRITZRIEE
REZHERANBELERERESHETEER
N

5 B = Bz

A P ER 5 HA R » A B S B8 A Y M PR Z T Eh Rl

% ThERE AR Z WA SR A B AS TS LUABREE

m”?:ﬁﬁfZ*“ﬂﬂ%ﬁ%iﬂE NEBPMEEEL
HFEE] I RIIMNES R Z T Ao

EERE

AEENETEEERBTIEREWRERMS IR %
A EEREMERT BITF Advances Limited (FTF
Advances |) (£ & BHERNEMRRE RS

ERRANERRMERS
EEE

TF AdvancesB—RIPEBFMAILNAE AT
BIEBIE163E A ARG IE TR EREA > £
TEBAAF P REEETRERNEIRFERNE
%1@%?:5@‘—55\ NRAEARFS o TF Advancesi@® E & ELRY

EEECHAEERA®E TF AdvancesiE&BME
1“@)5 EHEEAFIEER S o TF AdvancesTE & /81
REBDERKZZTEBUTHVES (@QIRBER
WEFRSEBHHEBEROAERSREEBNGE
B R



Internal control procedures

Credit risk assessment of customers

TF Advances has taken the following internal control measures in carrying out
the loan financing business:

(i

An eligible client could be a corporate or an individual whose
creditworthiness and loan collateral are evaluated and approved by the
finance department, legal department and the chief executive officer
of TF Advances (collectively, the “Management Team”). All the loans
will be required to be further approved by the Board if an applied
loan amount is over HK$25 million or an amount that would trigger
the disclosure or shareholder's approval obligation of the Company
under the Chapter 13, 14 or 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), whichever is the lower (collectively,
the “Threshold”).

Upon receiving the applicant’s particulars and loan terms documented
in a loan application form, TF Advances will obtain proof of identity,
background and contact details from the applicant for verification.
TF Advances will also conduct background search and credit search
against the applicants and guarantor (in case of any personal or
corporate guarantee). TF Advances will also follow the anti-money
laundering and terrorist financing prevention procedures in the course
of collection and verification of information about their backgrounds.
If there is any collateral such as pledge of real estate property, TF
Advances will perform preliminary valuation and validity check on the
legal titles of the collateral to be pledged. In case of low liquidity of the
collateral, we may consider engaging independent surveyor or valuer
to conduct a valuation.

Mechanism in determining loan terms

(i)

The operation team of TF Advances will determine the offer terms
of the loan such as the amount and the interest rate of the loan and
the period of repayment, on a case-by-case basis considering the
applicant's background and other factors (if applicable) such as the
following:

a) Tenor of the loan;
b) Any personal or corporate guarantee;
c) Any encumbrances on the collateral and its liquidity and

marketability;

d) Valuation of the mortgaged real estate (if any);

e) Salary income proof, duration of current employment,
personal net worth for individual customers;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREF RN
f) Financial position and performance on the latest auditor’s

report/management accounts;

g) Proposed use of proceeds; and/or

h) Benchmarking performed by obtaining quotations of the
prospective loans in kind by other peers.

After collecting all necessary information about the applicants and the
loans, a credit assessment form will be completed and submitted to
the Management Team for approval.

Approval process for granting loans

(iif)

The Management Team will approve the application if they think fit
based on the results of the background checks, borrower’s/guarantor’s
repayment ability, and legal searches and valuation of collateral. Prior
to the approval of the application, the Management Team may also
consult the independent non-executive directors of the Company
(“INEDs") for their independent view and professional judgement
on the loan application. In addition, the financial controller of the
Company will assess the cash position of the Company to ensure the
sufficiency of working capital of the Company.

It is a policy of TF Advances that the loan amount should normally
not be more than 100% of the market value of the collateral and/or
not be more than 5-years of total forecasted salary income/net profits.
Should there be any shortfall, TF Advances may request personal
guarantees from the borrower’s directors and/or ultimate beneficial
shareholders (in case the borrower is a company). Additional approval
from the Board is required when the applied loan amount exceeds the
Threshold.

After obtaining the internal approval, TF Advances will enter into the
loan agreements with the borrowers and/or guarantors. TF Advances
may also instruct it external legal consultant for the preparation and
execution of the required legal documents.
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Monitoring loan repayment and recovery

(iv)

Upon the loan agreements being entered into, the finance department
of TF Advances will mark the date of repayments of each loan. One
week before the payment due date, a notice for demand is served
to borrower. When it is overdue, an overdue notice will be brought
to the attention of senior management of TF Advances for further
consideration.

At each year end, a valuation of collateral is performed to ensure the
sufficiency of loan-to-value ratio at least reaching 100%. At each end
date of the bi-annual reporting period on 30 June and 31 December
of each year, the finance department of TF Advances will obtain an
updated statement of collaterals or financial statements of borrower
and guarantors (if any) for evaluation of credit worthiness.

Taking actions on delinquent loans

)

When the loan is overdue, the finance department of TF Advances
will contact the borrower and guarantor (if any) to remind them of the
possible enforcement action(s) and timing of repayment and seeking
reasons for the delay in payment. Depending on the reasons given
by the borrower, TF Advances may at its discretion grant some time
extension for a period usually not exceeding 3 months.

When the loan is overdue for more than 1 month, a written notice for
demanding repayment will be served to the borrower and guarantor (if
any).

When the loan is overdue for more than 3 months, a demand letter
will be served to the borrower and guarantor (if any). If no concrete
response is received, legal proceedings may be commenced against
the borrower and guarantor (if any). TF Advances may also apply to
court for freezing and/or disposing of the collaterals.

Normally settlement proposals like rescheduling the repayment
schedule would be negotiated between the defaulted customer and TF
Advances. However, such repayment schedule shall be approved by
the director(s) of TF Advances. Further approval from the Board will
be required, if the repayment proposal involves a change in principal
terms of any transaction which exceeds the Threshold or triggers any
other requirements under the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEwR D

TOP FIVE BORROWERS AND EXPECTED CREDITLOSS AIELZEFARSHHE (TE7)
(“ECL”) OF LOAN FINANCING (“LOAN") HTEER= B 5548 (TFEHAS BE548))

The following table sets out the top five borrowers of the Group (only two —F%§'J$$$@HIJ£%TETA)\ R UERT
borrowers as at 31 December 2024 and 2023) and the respective principal ZT_=F+_A=+—HEAHL) KEAXZEN
terms and the details of ECL of Loan: FTERARRTEREEEIEES

As at 31 December

R+ZA=+—-H
2024 2023
—ZmE —TT=F
Percentage Percentage
to total to total
gross gross
Principal principal Principal principal
amount amount amount amount
hEEER hARSHEE
x&8 BALL P BALL
Type of Interest rate, term, maturity and
receivable securities obtained HK$'000 HK$'000
FEWFRER R R DI E RSB GR TR FiEx
Gross:
b
Customer 1 Loan 10% per annum, maturity in March 2026 and guaranteed 5,000 52.6% 5,000 50.0%
by its shareholders
&A1 £ FREIR RZ2ZAFZAIE hERERR
Customer 2 Loan 10% per annum, maturity in March 2026 and guaranteed 4,500 47.4% 5,000 50.0%
by its shareholder
BR2 £ FREI0% RIZEZAE=RE HERRER
Total gross principal amount 9,500 100.0% 10,000 100.0%
A&
Percentage Percentage
to total gross to total gross
Provision principal Provision principal
amount amount amount amount
EAEHEE EREHELE
BESE BALL b Bat
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FiEx
Less: Provision for impairment losses under ECL (Note) 755 7.95% - 0%
H  BEEEERE T HERERE ()
Total net amount 8,745 10,000

BFE

1 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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Basis of Assessment of ECL

ECL assessment on receivables are performed individually based on
probability-weighted expected credit losses of multiple possible events
(“PWECL") model adopted in accordance with HKFRS 9, which involves 5 key
parameters, namely (i) exposure at default (“EAD”); (i) probability of default
(“PD"); (iii) loss given default (“LGD”) or 100% minus recovery rate upon
default (“Recovery Rate”); (iv) forward-looking factor; and (v) discount factor.
The depth of PWECL model depends on the year end status of recoverability
of each receivables which are classified into 3 stages from the lowest stage 1
to the highest stage 3 summarised as below and further set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements. References are made to the Company’s
announcement dated 3 September 2021 for capital terms used and further
details.

Type of stage Year end status of recoverability

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FHEEGERZIGEE

RIEE BV RS R FE5% B ZE R sES 1
AR INETRRE B 1E (MBI ETEREER

) REBEIERERNBRREESE B0
KA ER5R2 8 BIpERIMT (TEAD ) ;(EAIR

(TPDJ) ;(ii)E#91BL= (TLGD ) F100%REAIE]
W (MElWEE ) ;(vRTREMERIR ; R(vBRERGE - ]
EMNEEREEFEREREERRNSEEW
BV ERPIUREIAN > FEUGR D $EASMEREER > R
RH 1P ER E R A B3P ER BN T » LUK
— BN E M EERRM 34 - BRAMAE A
B RE—TE A2HAATREA S ——
FAR=ZAZ AL

Length of assessment

P EZHREY FRAULEIK T TERR
Stage 1 The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have any past-due  12-month ECL
amounts, or debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settle
after due date
SB1PEER HFEANWENRBRTECMAAHATE IEFAKLERINHBE 12E B TEREEE1E
BIREBEENIREBES
Stage 2 There has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition Lifetime ECL - not credit-
through information developed internally or external resources impaired
SHOPEES WEPERIFIMIE R F P FEBLR  EE R EREZIEM FHRTRREEREE—IEEE
BUE
Stage 3 There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired
SB3PEER BERBRBTEEREERE FHRRREERE-BEE
BE
Note: PEE -
As at 31 December 2024, the ECL calculation is based on EAD of HK$9.5 million (2023: RIZ2EZME+"A=+—H BHREEBIETERE2RE

HK$10 million) under stage 2, PD of 1.04%-5% (2023: 1.07%), LGD of 61.5%-61.8% (2023:
19.83%-22.08%), forward-looking factor of 54.1%-55.34% (2023: 63.15%) or Recovery Rate
of 0.35%-1.71% (2023: 0.13%-0.15%) and discount factor of 1. ECL of HK$755,000 (2023:
Nil) was provided by the Group during the year.

EZHYEAD 9,500,000 7t (ZZ =4 : 10,000,000%7T)
PD 1.04%-5% (ZE_=4 : 1.07%) ’ LGD 61.5%-61.8% (Z

T =4 :19.83%22.08%) ’ AIBEMERZR54.1%-55.34% (=
2 __E 63.15%) EUE0.35%-1.71% (ZE =4 :
0.13%-0.15%) RAIRGHHIE - NAEE » NE@HETE
HAE BRE1EE#755,0008 7T (T =4 ) o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEwR D

CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, there was no charge on the asset (2023: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities
(2023: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had capital commitments of
HK$134,000 (2023: HK$1.1 million) for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment.

PROSPECT

The Group primarily focuses on its operations in the PRC and Hong Kong,
making the economic, political, and social aspects of these jurisdictions crucial
to its overall performance. As of 2025, Hong Kong's economy faces significant
challenges, including weak domestic consumption and a sluggish property
market. However, the local stock market has shown signs of recovery, and
the unemployment rate remains stable at around 3%. These mixed signals
highlight the need for cautious optimism in navigating the local economic
landscape.

Similarly, the PRC continues to grapple with weak domestic consumption
and a persistently sluggish property market, although exports remain a
promising driver of growth. The Sino-US geopolitical tensions and global
protectionism pose substantial risks to China’s economy. In response, the
Chinese government has introduced various supportive measures, such as
subsidies for replacing old electronic appliances and loosening fiscal policies,
to counteract external threats, stimulate domestic demand and nurturing the
high-end technology sector. These present thrilling opportunities amidst the
uncertainties and the market turbulence.

The Distribution Segment aims to increase volume by diversifying products,
expanding distribution channels, and broadening its customer base across
various territories.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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As to the Manufacturing Segment, the Group has successfully established and
is now steadily operating a new production line for healthy instant noodles.
These noodles incorporate Chlamydomonas Reinhardtii Nutrition Powder as
a key ingredient. The powder is rich in essential plant-based protein, dietary
fiber, vitamins, omega-3 fatty acid, polycarbohydrate and some indispensable
minerals that humans may not absorb enough through diets such as
Selenium and iron. It brings significant health values to customers who are
concerned about blood sugar, blood pressure, lipid levels, cardiovascular
and cerebrovascular health, as well as immunity issues. Moreover, it can aid
in addressing common concerns such as bad low bowel, constipation, dry
eyes, etc. The segment has been carefully expanding its distribution channels
and enhancing market exposure for its proprietary brand of healthy noodles.
Additionally, it has been actively working to diversify its range of nutrient
enhancers that demonstrate resilience, even in a challenging economic
climate. Part of the products will be sold through our own platform in the
Distribution Segment.

In the Investment Segment, the Group adheres to a conservative strategy
for its portfolio, which includes equity, debt, and real estate. With the robust
risk management and control policies, the Group will closely assess its
performance and optimise its composition. In light of the current property
market in the PRC, the Group may offload some of real estate properties in the
PRC in order to replenish the required liquidity of the Group and address the
increasing market risk of the properties.

Regarding the Financial Leasing Segment, now reclassified as equity
investments at FVTOCI as of 31 December 2024, the Group will continue to
actively explore potential solutions to amicably and effectively address the
loss of control over BJEG and the litigation against the Group concerning the
overdue capital injection. Having initiated multiple litigations against BJEG and
its management, who are closely linked to another shareholder, the Group will
continue to work closely with its PRC legal counsel to assess and implement
legal strategies aimed at safeguarding and asserting shareholders’ rights in
BJEG.

The Group remains committed to optimizing its business segments to
enhance volume and profitability, with a pledge to further reduce costs.
We may consider withdrawing from the loss-making projects, offloading
certain properties and relocating the resources to the growing and promising
segments. The Group will cautiously and diligently explore new potential growth
opportunities, undervalued assets and business expansion opportunities in
order to diversify the income sources, bring in profits and ultimately attain long
and sustainable growth and enhance shareholders’ value as a whole.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND MATERIAL EAREREALE

DISPOSALS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group held the following significant investments R T _UEFE+_B=+—H > XEFFAUTE
with a value of 5% or more of the Group’s total assets: KB HEEGAEEQEES %I L .
Investment | BEI

Nature: Equity investments at FVTOCI

HE

Name of company:
AR

Principal businesses:

BEH

Number of shares held:

FREFRMHEE :

Investment cost:

KRB

Fair value as at 31 December 2024
AT NE+ B =+—HZAFE:

Size relative to the Group's total assets as at
31 December 2024:

HERAERR _Z_NF+_F=+—H
ZHEBEE RS

Performance during 2024
" MEEL

Investment strategy:

RERE

BATEZBHMEERAIRZ RIERE

Imagi Brokerage Limited
Imagi Brokerage Limited

provision of brokerage securities dealing service, securities margin financing and
asset management services. Imagi Brokerage holds Type 1, 2, 4, 5and 9
regulated activities licensed by the SFC

RMRLRF DR BHREBTHE B EBIZARTS © Imagi Brokeragellt
ERBETHEE F248 548 BN BOERRERER

55,500,000 (9.69%)
55,500,0004%(9.69%)

HK$74.3 million
74,300,000/ 7T

HK$23.0 million (2023: HK$49.2 million)
23,000,000/ 70 (Z & =4 : 49,200,000 7T)

5.9% (2023: 9.8%)

59% (CZE =4 :98%)

fair value loss of HK$26.2 million (2023: HK$5.7 million)
AT {ER51826,200,00078 7T (ZZ =4 : 5,700,000 7T)

bring returns to the Group by dividends and capital growth
BB RERIER A ANEEF RO
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Investment Il

Nature:

HE
Address:
Hhdk

Principal use:

FTERR

Investment cost:

BREMRAE

Fair value as at 31 December 2024
N_EZNF+ZA=+—HZA¥E:

Size relative to the Group’s total assets as at 31
December 2024:

HERAEER S -NE+ZA=+—H
ZHRBEZRE

Performance during 2024

R FHEE

Investment strategy:

LERE

Investment Il1

Nature:
HE

Address:
ik
Principal use:

ZR®R:

Investment cost:

BREMRAE

Fair value as at 31 December 2024
AZECME+ZB=+—HZRFE:

Size relative to the Group’s total assets as at
31 December 2024
HHRAERPR _S_OFE+-A=+—H
ZHRBEZRE

Performance during 2024
TETIUFEEE

Investment strategy:

BTRES

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE R R

REI

Investment property held under medium-term lease

RBEPHRENFAEZREYF

6 Units 3-storey industrial building located in 188 Xinjunhuan Road, Minhang
District, Shanghai, the PRC
A HRE E/BRITT @ MELIRK 1885 MCE I =8 = T 8F

letting out for rental income
AR LDUERR I A

RMB55.2 million
AR #55,200,00070

HK$46.8 million (2023: HK$56.1 million)
46,800,000 7T (ZFZ=4F : 56,100,000 7T)

11.9% (2023: 11.2%)

119% (CTBE =4 :11.2%)

Rental income of HK$3.7 million (2023: HK$2.5 million) and fair value loss of
HK$13.3 million (2023: HK$2.8 million)

FHE U A3,700,00058 7T (& = £ 1 2,500,000/ 75) K /AF{EK51813,300,000
At (T2 =4 1 2,800,000/7T)

bring returns to the Group by rental income and capital growth

BEEE WA R E ARG R A AEBRE R EER
BEIN

Investment property held under medium-term lease

RETPRANTEZREME

an industrial development complex with 4 industrial buildings located in Taoci
Industrial Zone, Qigong Community, Wan Shou Street, Jianping County, Chaoyang
City, Liaoning Province, the PRC

IR HEEREEAGmETHRESHERTHEMEIL XN T XMELRS
B8 AT BT

letting out for rental income

LEDUEEE B WA

RMB56.9 million
A B #56,900,00078

HK$63.9 million (2023: HK$79.6 million)
63,900,000/ 70 (— &~ =4 : 79,600,000 7T)

16.3% (2023: 15.8%)

16.3% (CTBT= . 15.8%)

Rental income of HK$2.3 million (2023: HK$3.3 million) and fair value loss of
HK$7.7 million (2023: HK$5.1 million)

FA£ U A 2,300,000 7T (T Z— =4 : 3,300,000787T) KAF{EE1E7,700,000
Bt (CTT =4 : 5,100,000787T)

bring returns to the Group by rental income and capital growth

BBEEWAKREAERARERTROR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREF RN

Investment IV BEIV

Nature: Interests in associates

MHE REE A B 2 #E

Name of company: Top Insight Holdings Limited

NE)LTE . Top Insight Holdings Limited

Principal businesses: Investment holding whose subsidiaries are engaged in investment property holding
businesses

FEER KREER ENBRABNEREYEERER

Number of shares held: 365 (34.7%)

FRIFR M &8 ! 365/%(34.7%)

Investment cost: HK$64.9 million

BEMA 64,900,000/ 7T

Fair value as at 31 December 2024 HK$75.9 million (2023: HK$78.1 million) (assume that the carrying amount

approximates to its fair value)
WoEoME+—A=+—B2AFM@: 7590000087 (CE =4 1 78,100,000850) (RIREEEEEEATE)

Size relative to the Group’s total assets as at 19.3% (2023: 15.5%)
31 December 2024:
EEHRAEER S ZNE+"HA=+—H 193% (CEIZ=%:155%)

ZHRBEZRE
Performance during 2024 Share of loss of HK$2.2 million (2023: profit of HK$0.9 million)
TECUEHEE FE1SA5182,200,00078 7T (Z & Z =4 : ##£1900,0007%7T)
Investment strategy: bring returns to the Group by sharing profits and capital growth
KB R EBDEEN RENIERAAREEBREIR

Save as disclosed elsewhere on this report, there were no material acquisitions ~— BRASIR & E it PR EEIN R _ T _IMETE
or disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies during 2024. BAMERHENBAB REE AT

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have any plans for material investments and capital asset
acquisitions as at 31 December 2024.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had approximately 59 (2023: 62)
employees (excluding employees of the Company’s associates) in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The employees are remunerated with basic salary, bonus and
other benefits in kind with reference to industry practice and their individual
performance. The Group offers induction trainings to new employees and gives
regular trainings to existing employees for updating their skills and knowledge.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere on this report, the Group did not have any
significant events after the reporting period.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERERREDH

EARENEFEEZARKEE

RIZBEWE+"_A=+—H > AEB W HEIME
AREREREEWEEZ REtE) o

BE R =

RIZE-WE+—_A=+—H > "EEREB KT
BRALSE (CE-=F : 624) BE (FafEd
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S TEA R EHMEYF @ 2 BITEIE U RS
ZEARIRETE - AEE AT EERME AR K
ARARERMEEHEI UBHHERRE R
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERHRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board and the management of the Group are committed to achieving
and maintaining high standards of corporate governance, which they consider
to be critical in safeguarding the integrity of the Company’s operations and
maintaining investors’ trust in the Company. It is of utmost importance to
conduct business with accountability, transparency and fairness. The Group’s
interests as well as those of its shareholders will be maximised in the long run
by adhering to these principles. The management of the Group also actively
observes the latest corporate governance developments in Hong Kong and
overseas.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company had complied with all the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange
throughout the year ended 31 December 2024, except the following
deviations:

Code Provision C.2.1

The roles of the chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Under the current management
structure of the Company, Mr. Wong Lik Ping (“Mr. Wong”) is the chairman
of the Board (the “Chairman”) and chief executive officer of the Company
(the “CEQ"). Upon the resignation of former CEO, Mr. Lai Ka Fai on 31 July
2023, Mr. Wong took up the function of CEO while the Company has been
in the course of nominating suitable candidates for the vacancy of CEO.
In addition, under the supervision of the Board which is comprised of four
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors, the Board is appropriately structured with balance of
power to provide sufficient checks to protect the interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole. Therefore, the Board considers that the deviation
from Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in this circumstance
and will be addressed in the future.

Code Provision E.1.2

The remuneration committee’s terms of reference should include reviewing
and making recommendations to the board on the issuer’s policy and structure
for senior management remuneration and the remuneration packages of
senior management. The terms of reference of the remuneration committee of
the Company exclude review of and making recommendations to the Board in
relation to senior management remuneration, as in the Board’s opinion, it was
more appropriate for the executive Directors to perform these duties.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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EXg

EXeHHURARTES —RIFRTESFK=
LB TESEN - EFEHEZBERA
AR BN EBEEEEZESHNRN EEE
ERU=—EEFEEE (EFFH5]8) - AIEZE
EE - REEEERFMEEE -BE T _UF
T+ A=+ —HLEFE REFHFEEFEEH
EEHER TR RRRAGNRUET W T EE
EREFZEGRENBERNARENHER
TEIELHEREA °

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, one non-executive
Director and three INEDs. The brief biographic details of and the relationship
among Board members is set out in the Directors’ Profiles section on pages
35 to 37. The Board has established three Board committees (the “Board
Committees”), namely Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. Attendance of the Board Meetings, the meetings
of the Board Committees and the General Meetings for the year ended 31
December 2024 is given below. The respective responsibilities of the Board
and Board Committees are discussed later in this report.

Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend

HE/ AERUETENRHY
Annual
Board Audit  Nomination Remuneration General
Meeting ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
B
EXe02 BKEZEYT RL4EZRT FWE3T 2 BEAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong Lik Ping INFRE 6/9 17 17 17
Mr. Siu Wai Bun REELE 99 17
Mr. Tao Ke (R 39 o1
Mr. Ng Tin Shui BXERE 09 01
Mr. Qiao Weibing (resigned on 3 April 2024) Bk 4E (N2 _ME
mA=HED 03 N/A R EH
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Yip Man Yi Egiaut 39 11
Independent non-executive Directors BUERTES
Mr. Leung Yiu Ming David RRREL 39 171
Mr. Wu Kai Tang RS E 99 22 1
Mr. Ng Kwok Sang (appointed on 3 April 2024) REI4£ %4 (R -2 _MFE
MB=HEZD 6/6 17 171
Mr. Lo Tsun Yu (resigned on 3 April 2024)  ERFHEE (R-Z_MF
mA=HED 33 171 171 /1 NATBH
Mr. Ho Hin Yip (resigned on 21 December ~ {f7 &5 4 (R -2 M4F
2024) +-A-+—HED 89 212 171 171 171
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRS

All Directors are regularly updated on governance and regulatory matters.
There is an established procedure for Directors to obtain independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company in discharge of their duties.

Mr. Ng Kwok Sang was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 3 April 2024. Mr. Ng has obtained the legal advice as referred to in Rule
3.09D of the Listing Rules before his appointment became effective, and he
has confirmed that he understood his obligations as a Director.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary. Notice of at
least 14 days has been given to all Directors for all regular board meetings and
the Directors can include matters for discussion in the agenda if necessary.
Agenda and accompanying board papers in respect of regular board meetings
are sent out in full to all directors within reasonable time before the meeting.
Draft minutes of all board meetings are circulated to Directors for comment
within a reasonable time prior to confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of Board Committees are kept by
duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all Directors have
access to board papers and related materials, and are provided with adequate
information on a timely manner, which enable the Board to make an informed
decision on matters placed before it.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Upon the resignation of former CEO, Mr. Lai Ka Fai on 31 July
2023, Mr. Wong Lik Ping has been the Chairman and CEOQ. The Company has
been in the course of nominating suitable candidates for the vacancy of CEO.
The Board believes that the current measure is interim in nature. Therefore,
the Board considers that the deviation from provision C.2.1 of the CG Code
is appropriate in this circumstance. The Chairman provides leadership to
management in respect of operational issues. The CEO has overall chief
executive responsibility for the Group’s business development and day-to-day
management generally. The segregation of duties ensures a clear distinction
between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the CEO’s
responsibility to manage the Group’s business on behalf of the Board in the
operational management of the Company. With the support of executive
Directors and the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and receive adequate and reliable
information in a timely manner.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The Board has a non-executive Director, Ms. Yip Man Yi, who mainly oversees
the Company and its business issues in a broad perspective. Ms. Yip has been
appointed for one year term from 17 October 2024 and is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board currently has three INEDs, one of the INEDs hold appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. All INEDs have been appointed
for a specific term and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles. The composition of the Board has complied with
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules that the INEDs represented at least one-third of
the Board.

Each of the INEDs has given the Company an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all INEDs are independent and meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

Directors should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
into the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Directors are committed to complying with the Code Provision C.1.4 on
Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development activities by reading regulatory updates, and/or attending
seminars/workshops relevant to the business/Directors’ duties.
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EXRERRS

A record of training they received for the year ended 31 December 2024
was provided to the Company. The individual training record of each Director
received for the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out below:

EFCRUNE-SMET A= +—ALE
R
HEF-MET A=+ —BLEE RS

I T AR FRESIGRES

BIRCEE -
Attending
seminars/
Workshops
Reading relevant to
Regulatory the business/
updates directors’ duties
HERER
R EHE EEHERMAZ
ZEMEN B WE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wong Lik Ping FHFEEE v 4
Mr. Siu Wai Bun BmEmLL v v
Mr. Tao Ke G v 4
Mr. Ng Tin Shui RRERE v v
Non-executive Director ERITES
Ms. Yip Man Yi BRErt v
Independent non-executive Directors BIERITES
Mr. Leung Yiu Ming David RS v v
Mr. Wu Kai Tang tHRREE ST v v
Mr. Ng Kwok Sang SEESE v 4
DELEGATION BY THE BOARD EEGIRE

The Board sets the Group’s objectives and strategies and monitors its
performance. The Board also decides on matters such as annual and
interim results, merger & acquisition transactions, provision of loans, director
appointments, and dividend and accounting policies and monitors the internal
controls of the Group’s business operation. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility of overseeing the Group’s day to day operations to
management executives.

When the Board delegates aspect of its management and administration
functions to management, clear directions would be given as to the power
of management, in particular, the circumstances where management
should report back to the Board before making decision or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Group.
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Principal functions that are specifically delegated by the Board to the
management include (i) implementation of corporate strategy and policy
initiatives; (ii) provision of management reports to the Board in respect of
Group's performance, financial position and prospects; and (iii) day-to-day
management of the Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a diversity of board members policy of the Company
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) and discussed all measurable objectives set for
implementing the policy.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business. All Board appointments will be based on merit and
the candidates will be considered against measurable objectives, taking into
account the Company’s business and needs. Selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity criteria, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, knowledge, professional experience and
skills. The Company will also take into account factors based on its specific
needs from time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and the
contribution that the selected candidates may bring to the Board.

Pursuant to the amendments to corporate governance requirements, the
Company is required to have a board with different gender as at 31 December
2024. The Company has one female board member and will aim to gradually
increase in the number of female board members thereafter.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring and periodically
reviewing the Board Diversity Policy. Any revisions to the policy as
recommended by the Nomination Committee will be submitted to the Board
for consideration and approval.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Company adopted the director nomination policy of the Company (the
“Director Nomination Policy”) on 14 December 2018 which set out the criteria
and process in the appointment and nomination of directors, in order to ensure
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and ensure the Board continuity and appropriate
leadership.

According to the Director Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee will
carry out evaluation on candidates by considering their skills, professional
qualification, experience, independence (for INEDs), gender, time commitment
and make recommendation to the Board based on the nomination procedure.
The Director Nomination Policy will also be reviewed from time to time in
order to satisfy the business needs and ensure compliance with the regularity
requirements as well as maintain good corporate governance practice.

On 22 January 2025, the Nomination Committee reviewed the Director
Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy, and considered that the said
policies were appropriate and effective.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee to ensure that there are
formal and transparent procedures for setting policies on the remuneration
of Directors. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Remuneration
Committee comprises the Board’s Chairman, Mr. Wong Lik Ping, and two
INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Kwok Sang and Mr. Wu Kai Tang. The Remuneration
Committee is chaired by Mr. Ng Kwok Sang.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. Pursuant to the amendments to
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules with effect from 1 January 2023, the terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee were adopted, amended and
approved by the Board on 30 December 2022.

During the year, Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review the
remuneration packages of the Directors. The Remuneration Committee
ensures that no Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, a copy of which is posted
on the Company’s website, are consistent with the terms set out in the relevant
section of the CG Code.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Nomination Committee to ensure fair and
transparent procedures for the appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors to the Board. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Nomination Committee comprises the Board’s Chairman, Mr. Wong Lik
Ping, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Wu Kai Tang and Mr. Ng Kwok Sang. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Wong Lik Ping.

During the year, Nomination Committee held one meeting to review the
structure, size, composition of the Board, existing Nomination Policy and
discuss re-election of directors. In selecting and recommending candidates
for directorship, the committee will consider the background, experience,
qualification and suitability of the candidates as well as the Board Diversity
Policy. The Board will approve the recommendations based on the same
criteria. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, a copy of which
is posted on the Company’s website, are consistent with the terms set out in
the relevant section of the CG Code.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr. Wu Kai Tang, Mr. Ng Kwok Sang and Mr. Leung Yiu Ming
David. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Wu Kai Tang.
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The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to review and provide
supervision over the financial reporting process and internal controls of the
Group, and perform the corporate governance duties. During the year, Audit
Committee held two meetings to review and approved the interim and annual
results of the Company, reviewed and recommended risk management,
internal control matters and internal audit function of the Group, considered
and recommended the reappointment and the remuneration of the external
auditors and discussed audit planning and issues with the external auditors.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, a copy of which is posted on
the Company’s website, are consistent with the terms set out in the relevant
section of the CG Code.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 of the
Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiries, all Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct for
securities transactions by Relevant Employees (as defined in the Listing Rules)
to regulate the dealings in the securities of the Company by certain employees
of the Group who are considered to be likely in possession of unpublished
price sensitive information of the Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects.

Management shall provide sufficient explanation and information to the Board
as will enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information presented before board meeting for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and ensuring that the preparation of the
Group’s consolidated financial statements is in accordance with the relevant
requirements and applicable standards.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor's Report on pages 49 to 53.
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The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment to
annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators
as well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The main features of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are to provide a clear governance structure, policies and procedures,
as well as reporting mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage its risks
across business operations. The Group has established a risk management
framework, which consists of the Board, the Audit Committee and the
functional responsible management of the Group (“Senior Management”).
The Board determines the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in
achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and has the overall responsibility
for monitoring the design, implementation and the overall effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems. The risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. Its improvement is an ongoing process and the Board maintains a
continuing commitment to strengthen the Company’s control environment
and processes. The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts reviews
of the effectiveness of such systems once annually, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls. The Group
has formulated and adopted risk management policy in providing directions
in identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks. At least on an annual
basis, the Senior Management identifies risks that would adversely affect
the achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the
identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and
risk owners are then established for those risks considered to be significant.
In addition, the Group has engaged an internal control consultant to assist the
Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring of risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, which fulfil the internal audit
functions of the Group. The annual review plan of the Group covers major
activities and material controls including operational, financial and compliance
of the Group’s business units. It also covers the changes, since the last annual
review, in the nature and extent of significant risks, and the Group’s ability to
respond to changes in its business and the external environment.
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A report on the result of risk management and internal control review report
from internal control consultant was provided to the Audit Committee and
the Board in March 2025. The Board, through the Audit Committee, had
performed annual review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, including but not limited to (i) corporate level
controls (such as information and communication, including the handling and
dissemination of inside information); and (ii) certain operation level controls.
In the course of internal control review, internal control consultant identified
internal control deficiencies and weaknesses, proposed recommendations for
improvements and remedial actions with management and process owners.
The management has taken certain remedial actions accordingly. The results
of the internal control reviews and the management's remedial actions have
been reported to the Audit Committee. The Board concluded that there are no
material irregularities nor areas of concern that would have significant adverse
impact on the Group's state of affair, and that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems were effective and adequate (including the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions) and, save as discussed in elsewhere in this report, have complied
with the CG code provisions on risk management and internal control during
the year. There was also no material breach of procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information during the year. The
Company regularly reminds the directors and the relevant staff about due
compliance and latest regulatory updates with the insider information and
other relevant regulations.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the auditor of the Company, Zhonghui
Anda CPA Limited provided audit and non-audit services to the Company and
the Group, are set out as follows:

AR EE

Nature of services
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Fees paid/
payable
Bt &R
HK$

AT

BILIRTS
FEEIZIRES*

Audit services
Non-audit services*

930,000
140,000

1,070,000

* Non-audit services mainly included review on interim report and
continuing connected transactions
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COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring the Board
policies and procedures are followed and for facilitating information flows
and communications among Directors and its committees as well as with
shareholders and management, and between management and the non-
executive directors.

Mr. Siu Wai Bun was appointed as Company Secretary on 31 July 2023. Mr.
Siu is @ member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and an associate member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute.
He undertook over 15 hours of relevant professional training to update his skills
and knowledge during the year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary at the Company’s office in Hong Kong at Room 2203, 22/F., Kwan
Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, specifying the
shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the
proposal he/she intends to put forward at general meeting regarding any
specified transaction/business and its supporting documents.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to the
procedures available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Making enquiry to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
in writing to the Company Secretary at the Company'’s office in Hong Kong at
Room 2203, 22/F., Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy for striking a right balance between
rewarding its shareholders by sharing a portion of the profits and meeting
adequate cash reserves for its working capital requirements and future
prospects of the Company. With reasonable but not pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio, the proposed amount of dividends will be made at the
discretion of the Board and will depend on the Company’s operational results,
cash flow situation, financial conditions, capital expenditure requirements,
general business conditions and strategies, future economic environment,
statutory and regulatory restrictions and any other factors that the Board may
deem relevant. The policy will be reviewed from time to time so as to keep in
line with the change of market conditions and other factors as the Board may
deem relevant.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company
has established a range of communication channels between itself, its
shareholders and investors, including answering questions through the annual
general meeting (“AGM"), the publications of annual and interim reports,
notices, announcements and circulars on the website of the Company at
www.egichk.com.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

In compliance with the Code Provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the Board
adopted a whistle blowing policy of the Company (the “Whistleblowing Policy”)
on 31 March 2022. It provides employees and the relevant third parties who
deal with the Group (e.g. customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors) with
guidance and reporting channels on reporting any suspected improprieties
in any matters related to the Group directly addressed to the designated
person. An email account (ac.hk@egichk.com.hk) has been set up for this
purpose. All reported matters will be investigated independently and, in the
meantime, all information received from a whistleblower and its identity will be
kept confidential. The Board and the Audit Committee will regularly review the
Whistleblowing Policy and mechanism to improve its effectiveness.

ANTI-FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

In compliance with the Code Provision D.2.7 of the CG Code, the Board
adopted an anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy of the Company (the “Anti-
Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy”) on 31 March 2022. It outlines guidelines
and the minimum standards of conducts, all applicable laws and regulations
in relation to the anti-corruption and anti-bribery, the responsibilities of
employees to resist fraud, to help the Group defend against corrupt practices
and to report any reasonably suspected case of fraud and corruption or any
attempts thereof, to the management or through an appropriate reporting
channel. The Group would not tolerate all forms of fraud and corruption
among all employees and those acting in an agency or fiduciary capacity on
behalf of the Group, and in its business dealing with third parties. The Board
and the Audit Committee will review the Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption
Policy and mechanism periodically to ensure its effectiveness and enforce
the commitment of the Group to the prevention, deterrence, detection and
investigation of all forms of fraud and corruption.

On behalf of the Board
Wong Lik Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2025
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Lik Ping, aged 64, is the chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
He joined the Group in August 2012 and is responsible for overall leadership
strategic planning, business development and Board issues of the Group.
He was (i) an executive director and a vice-chairman of Shougang Fushan
Resources Group Limited (Stock Code: 639) from March 2009 to December
2015 and (i) an executive director and the chairman of Theme International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 990) from November 2009 to January 2016,
both companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is
a director and the sole shareholder of Worldkin Development Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”), Mr. Wong is a member of the
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.
He has extensive experience in trading business, financial industry and
investments in a wide range of businesses in the PRC.

Mr. Siu Wai Bun, aged 41, was appointed as an executive Director on 31
July 2023. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Siu has over 15 years’ experience in accounts and finance. Prior to joining
the Company, he was the chief financial controller and company secretary
of Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Group Limited (Stock Code:
1803) since April 2022 and resigned from these positions on 27 July 2023.
Between October 2016 and April 2022, he first joined the Company as the
financial controller. In November 2017, he was additionally appointed as
a joint company secretary of the Company. Mr. Siu also gained experience
from working at various finance and accounting departments at other listed
companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Siu also has over 6 years of accounting and
auditing experience gained from different international accounting firms.
Mr. Siu has a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and a Bachelor of Law degree from the University of
London (External Programme) through distance learning. He is a member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an associate
member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries).

Mr. Tao Ke, aged 41, was appointed as an executive Director on 6 March
2015. Mr. Tao holds a Master of Social Science degree from University
of Glasgow and a Bachelor degree in Economics from Beijing Institute of
Technology. Mr. Tao has extensive experience in corporate finance and
overseas merger and acquisition. He worked in international investment
banks and responsible for clients’ project management, project acquisition
and various initial public offerings. Mr. Tao is currently a general manager of a
chemical production group in Shandong.
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Mr. Ng Tin Shui, aged 69, was appointed as an executive Director on 9
September 2020. Mr. Ng holds a bachelor degree of science in Mechanical
Engineering from the University of Saskatchewan in Canada. He was the
chairman of Hong Kong Overseas Merchants Association between 2008 and
2014. He is also the life time member of the American Society of Mechanical
Engineers. Mr. Ng has over 30 years of experience in trading of a variety
of pharmaceutical products, health supplement, personal care and other
healthcare products (collectively “Pharmaceutical and Healthcare Products”).
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng was involved in sales and corporate
management in the trading of Pharmaceutical and Healthcare Products,
including KT&G Ginseng and Tiger Balm, which were first authorised products
for distribution in Hong Kong. Recently, his scope of work and experience
expanded to the investment in the research and development and production
of biotechnologies, including application of algae and marine ingredients, plant
stem cell and Car-T cell specialised in the cancer DNA reading and implanting.
Mr. Ng is currently a director of Top Empire International Limited.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Yip Man Yi, aged 53, was appointed as a non-executive Director in
October 2019. Ms. Yip was graduated from Seneca College of Applied Arts and
Technology, Toronto, Canada and has over 23 years’ experience in financial
market and money market. Ms. Yip has worked in HSBC Market (Asia) Limited
for Global Markets and companies listed on both the Main Board and GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She was actively involved
in formulating investment strategy and was responsible for overseeing the
operation of various investment projects. Ms. Yip was appointed as executive
director and chairman of Hephaestus Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8173)
(formerly known as Union Asia Enterprise Holdings Limited), a company listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange, from December 2015 to November 2019.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Yiu Ming David, aged 58, was appointed as an INED on 9
September 2020. Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor's degree of Pharmacy from
National Defense Medical Center, School of Pharmacy in Taipei Taiwan, and a
master of Science Clinical Pharmacy from University of Sunderland in the UK.
He obtained a pharmacist registration and practising certificate from Pharmacy
& Poisons Board of Hong Kong. Over 20 years, Mr. Leung has been working
as pharmacist and/or consultant in various dispensaries and medical centers
where he is responsible for operation, strategic planning and execution of
pharmaceutical business. He has been an adjunct lecturer of Pharmaceuticals
and Pharmacology in HKU SPACE. Mr. Leung has extensive experience,
qualifications and exposure in sales and supply and business management of
pharmaceutical and healthcare products in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC
markets.
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Mr. Wu Kai Tang, aged 39, was appointed as an INED on 31 August 2023.
Mr. Wu obtained his Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2007. Mr. Wu is currently the sole proprietor
at Messrs. Wu Kai Tang Certified Public Accountant (Practising), a firm of
certified public accountants and established by Mr. Wu on 1 March 2015
in Hong Kong. Mr. Wu currently also acts as an independent non-executive
director of Trendzon Holdings Group Limited (Stock Code: 1865). Mr. Wu
has over 15 years' experience in accounts and finance. Prior to establishing
Messrs. Wu Kai Tang Certified Public Accountant (Practising), Mr. Wu gained
experience from working at various finance and accounting departments at
companies in Hong Kong, including listed companies. Mr. Wu also has over
6 years of accounting and auditing experience gained from international
accounting firms.

Mr. Ng Kwok Sang, aged 43, was appointed as an INED on 3 April 2024.
Mr. Ng obtained his Master of Laws and Master of Science in Professional
Accountancy from the University of London. Mr. Ng was admitted as solicitor
in Hong Kong in 2007 and is currently a partner of a local law firm. Mr. Ng
has over 15 years’ experience in the legal sector. He is experienced in advising
listed companies in respect of acquisition of assets, investments, fund raising,
regulatory compliance and other commercial matters.
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The Board is pleased to present this report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

Details of the activities and other particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and segment information for the year
ended 31 December 2024 is set out in note 5 and note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 54 and 55 of this

annual report.

The Directors do not recommend payment of final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2024.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 156 of this annual report.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in plant and equipment of the Group during the year
are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Under the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution of dividend the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 December 2024, in the opinion of the Directors, the Company’s share
premium and reserves available for distribution to its shareholders amounted to
HK$79,696,000.

Movement in the share premium and reserves of the Group during the year are
set out on page 155 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of
the Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and five
largest customers represented 35.3% and 71.2% of the Group’s revenue in
2024 respectively. Dan Dan Group, comprised of Dan Dan Mall Limited and
Dan Dan Mall (HK) Limited, being one of the Group’s five largest customers, is
owned by a substantial shareholder, Mr. Lam Tsun On.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and five
largest suppliers represented 67.9% and 88.0% of the Group’s purchases in
2024 respectively. Top Empire International Limited, being the Group’s largest
supplier, is jointly owned by a Director and substantial shareholder, Mr. Ng Tin
Shui and his spouse.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates, or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions during the year are disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Lik Ping (Chairman and CEO)

Mr. Siu Wai Bun

Mr. Tao Ke

Mr. Ng Tin Shui

Mr. Qiao Weibing (resigned on 3 April 2024)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Yip Man Yi

Independence non-executive Directors

Mr. Leung Yiu Ming David

Mr. Wu Kai Tang

Mr. Ng Kwok Sang (appointed on 3 April 2024)
Mr. Ho Hin Yip (resigned on 21 December 2024)
Mr. Lo Tsun Yu (resigned on 3 April 2024)

Mr. Tao Ke, Mr. Ng Tin Shui and Mr. Leung Yiu Ming David, shall retire from
offices by rotation in the forthcoming AGM in accordance with Article 84(1) of
the Articles, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

A separate resolution will be proposed for the re-election of each Mr. Tao Ke,
Mr. Ng Tin Shui and Mr. Leung Yiu Ming David at the forthcoming AGM.

The biographic details of the existing Directors are set out on pages 35 to 37 of
this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

The term of service as a Director is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the provisions of the Articles. Each of the
non-executive Director and INED has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of one year subject to re-election in the
forthcoming AGM. None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with any member of the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, none of the Directors nor any entity connected with the Directors had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisting during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, there was no (i) contract of significance between the Company, or one
of its subsidiary companies, and a controlling shareholder of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2024; and (ii)
contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors have any interest in competing business to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2024, the following directors and chief executive of the
Company have the following interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
and the Model Code:
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Long and short positions in
Company:

the ordinary shares/underlying shares of the

RAEREE

B ERRD IR R%A

Number of share/underlying shares held

FEKRG HRRNEE
Long (L) or
Total short (S)  Percentage of
Nature of interest interests position interests
#EL)
Directors/chief executive £5/TETHAS -3k Mt FRAGS) FREIL
Wong Lik Ping FHE Beneficial owner 46,600,000 S 2.76%
B’ \%EA /ﬁ%\
Controlled corporation 145,500,000 S 8.62%
SR (Note 1) i}
(Hraz1)
Ng Tin Shui RRE Interest of spouse 163,900,000 L 9.71%
[t (Note 2) )
Hizt2)
Controlled Corporation 56,570,000 L 3.35%
ZREEE (Note 3) 5=
(H5t3)
Notes: iz
i These interests are held by Worldkin Development Limited (“Worldkin”) which is 1. ZEEHHUHERBRART (BE) 55 Mt
wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Lik Ping. Mr. Wong was therefore deemed to be interested HEAFREZERS AL TREFRARHE)
in the shares held by Worldkin under the SFO. R ZRDPEERS RIS EGIFTRE 2 #m
2. Ms. Chi Chin is the spouse of Mr. Ng Tin Shui. Mr. Ng was deemed to be interestin =~ 2. TERZTARKRELENR B RAEEREANE
163,900,000 shares held by his spouse under the SFO. F 181575 2 163,900,0000& i () R iEA 55 RIS IE
IR e 2 Aas o
3. These interests are held by China Food Safety Holding (Hong Kong) Company Limited 3. ZERDHRPERER &B) BRAE (e

(“CFSH (HK)") which is wholly-owned by Mr. Ng Tin Shui. Mr. Ng was therefore
deemed to be interested in the shares held by CFSH (HK) under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executive and their
associates had any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations, within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of

the SFO and the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2024, in accordance with the register of the substantial
shareholders kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
and the Listing Rules, the following persons were interested (including short
positions) in the shares or underlying shares of the Company.

Interests in the ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company:
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SR IR EE > S ERRERA

TR R B B SXVER B2 R34 8 R 7B RA)
BEATREE U ALRAASRH IR
B (BIERE) o

RAABIEERAERRD 2 e

Number of shares/underlying shares held

FERR,EHRRHAEE

Long (L) or

short (S) Percentage

Notes  Nature of interest Total interests positions of interests
#aL

Name of shareholders RRAE e s EEEE R HKAS) FRESL

Worldkin Development Limited HERRERAT 1 Beneficial owner 145,500,000 S 8.62%
BEnBEEA xB

Funde Sino Life Insurance Co. Ltid. E@4%#% )\#ﬁ bz Beneficial owner 357,443,000 L 21.18%
BHBERA BB o=

Oshidori International Holdings EE%EEHQE@@E 3 Security interest 192,100,000 L 11.39%
Limited ERER 15y}

Win Wind Capital Limited EREXRERAT 3 Security interest 192,100,000 L 11.39%
EfriER o=

Win Wind Resources Limited ERERERAT 2&3  Security interest 192,100,000 L 11.39%
2R3 ERER =

Ms. Chi Chin TELL O Controlled corporation 163,900,000 L 9.71%
REHEE o=

) Interest of spouse 56,570,000 L 3.35%
[y o=

Heron Biomedical Limited EEKEEYEE 5 Beneficial owner 163,900,000 L 9.71%
BRAF BEnBEEA o=

China Food Safety Holding (Hong ~ B LR (F38) 6 Beneficial owner 56,570,000 L 3.35%
Kong) Company Limited BRAF BEREEA o=

Expert Magic Limited Expert Magic Limited 4 Beneficial owner 175,870,968 L 10.42%
BB =

Lam Tsun On wEZ Beneficial owner 9,376,129 L 0.56%
BEnBEEA o=

4 Controlled corporation 175,870,968 L 10.42%
REHEE o=
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Notes:
1. Mr. Wong Lik Ping holds the entire equity interest of Worldkin and was accordingly

deemed to be interested in 145,500,000 shares of the Company held by Worldkin.
Mr. Wong personally owned 46,600,000 shares of the Company.

2. Win Wind Resources Limited had security interests in 192,100,000 shares.

3. Win Wind Resources Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Win Wind Capital
Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by Oshidori International Holdings Limited.
Accordingly, Oshidori International Holdings Limited was deemed to be interested in
192,100,000 shares held by Win Wind Resources Limited.

4, Mr. Lam Tsun On holds 50% equity interest of Expert Magic Limited (“Expert Magic”)
and was deemed to be a controlling shareholder of Expert Magic.

5 Out of the 220,470,000 shares which Ms. Chi Chin was interested in (i) 163,900,000
shares were held by Heron Biomedical Limited, a company wholly owned by her; and
(i) 56,570,000 shares were held by her spouse, Mr. Ng Tin Shui.

6. CFSH (HK) is wholly-owned by Mr. Ng Tin Shui.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as having an interest or
a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at 31
December 2024.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group had the following

continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are disclosed in
compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

List of Connected Persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) who had
transactions and the relationship with the Group:

Name of Connected Persons

REALTRTE

Top Empire International Limited
(“TEIM

THERBRAE (TEFHRERE)

Dan Dan Mall Limited and Dan Dan
Mall (HK) Limited (collectively

REATHAERZRE

shareholders of the Company.

known as “Dan Dan Group”)

Dan Dan Mall Limited 5&zDan Dan Mall

(HK) Limited (#:#&[ Dan Danfs

=)

Details of the annual cap and the actual transaction amount for the year ended
31 December 2024 in respect of these continuing connected transactions are

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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HRA) B8

Relationship between the Connected Persons and the Group

TEl is jointly owned by Mr. Ng Tin Shui, a Director and his spouse, and they are substantial

BHERHEFRRELAERALBREES  BRERSETATNEIERR -

Mr. Lam Tsun On, a substantial shareholder of the Company and a director of a subsidiary,
holds 50% shareholding of Dan Dan Group.

KRB EBRRFMBRABDEFML LT EREADan DanEE50% &1 ©

ERZERERERZBE_E _NF+_4
= t+—HLEFEZFELRRERRZ LB

as follows: T
Actual
Annual cap transaction amount
FELR BERRZEEE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Nature of transactions REEE M5 FAET T#ET
Purchases of trading goods from TEI REHEREEE S Em 1 55,000 54,723
Sale of trading goods to Dan Dan Group [EDan DanfEEHEE 5
B 2 8,400 8,307
Rendering of services from Dan Dan Group Dan Danf B2 AR5 3 1,200 949
Notes: iz
1. On 15 November 2022, Ever Grand Healthcare Company Limited (“EGHC"), a = RIE__F+—H+HH  XATEENEA

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser, and TEl, as supplier, entered
into the TEl Framework Purchase Agreement pursuant to which the Group agreed
to purchase, and TEI agreed to sell, the medical and healthcare products from 31
January 2023 to 31 December 2023. For more details, please refer to the Company’s
circular dated 10 January 2023.

The TEI Framework Purchase Agreement had expired on 31 December 2023,
while the Group continued the purchase of medical and healthcare products from
TEI during the year ended 31 December 2024. Thus, on 17 February 2025, EGHC
entered into the conditional Supplemental TEI Framework Purchase Agreement with
TEI to extend the TEl Framework Purchase Agreement for one year commencing
from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024. Such Supplemental TEI Framework
Purchase Agreement will be subject to the approval, confirmation and ratification of
the independent shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company on 3 April 2025. For more details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 17 February 2025 and the Company'’s circular dated 14 March
2025.
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28 Tripler Holdings Limited (“Tripler”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
supplier, and Dan Dan Group, as purchaser, entered into the Framework Agreement
and the Supplemental Framework Agreement on 22 March 2024 and 3 April 2024
respectively, pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell, and Dan Dan Group agreed
to purchase, daily necessities, hygiene products and health products of the Group
for a term of three years from 1 April 2024. For more details, please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 22 March 2024 and 3 April 2024.

3. Dan Dan Group, as a service provider, and Tripler entered into the Provision of
Services Agreement and the Supplemental Provision of Services Agreement on 22
March 2024 and 3 April 2024 respectively, pursuant to which Dan Dan Group agreed
to provide the marketing and promotional services in respect of the Group’s products
to Tripler for a term of three years from 1 April 2024. For more details, please refer to
the Company’s announcements dated 22 March 2024 and 3 April 2024.

Other than an inadvertent oversight of the expiry date of the TEI Framework
Purchase Agreement, the INEDs have reviewed the internal control procedures
put in place by the Company and the continuing connected transactions
set out above and have confirmed that the internal control procedures were
adequate and effective, and these continuing connected transactions were
entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii)
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than
terms available to or from independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on the price and terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 (Revised), “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules,” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Based on the work performed,
the auditor of the Company has confirmed in its letter to the Board that
nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that the continuing
connected transactions entered into by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2024 (i) have not been approved by the Board; (ii) were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group for the
transactions which involved the provision of goods or services by the Group;
(ii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
terms of the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and (iv) have
exceeded the annual cap in respect of the year ended 31 December 2024 as
set by the Company.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 22 to 34 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Details of the Company’s environmental policies and performances for the year
are set out in a separate Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2024.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provides that each Director or other officers of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise in relation thereto. In
addition, the Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers’
liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors and
officers of the Company.

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 467 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for the benefit of the
directors of the Group is currently in force and was in force during the
year. The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs
associated with proceedings which may be brought against Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the amount of public
float as approved by the Stock Exchange and as permitted under the Listing
Rules as at the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EETRE

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023 were audited by Messrs. Zhounghui Anda CPA Limited (“Zhonghui
Anda”).

The same for the year ended 31 December 2022 was audited by Confucius
International CPA Limited, while that for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 were audited by BDO Limited.

A resolution to re-appoint Zhonghui Anda as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Wong Lik Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

;L

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Ever Grand
Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 155, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B HETER S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Investment properties
Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group measured its investment properties at fair value with the
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated profit or loss. This
fair value measurement is significant to our audit because the balance of
investment properties of HK$110,695,000 as at 31 December 2024 and
the fair value loss of HK$21,030,000 for the year then ended are material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s fair value
measurement involves application of judgement and is based on assumptions
and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of the external
valuer engaged by Group;

- Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting with the external
valuer to discuss and challenge the valuation process, methodologies
used and market evidence to support significant judgments and
assumptions applied in the valuation model;

- Checking key assumptions and input data in the valuation model to
supporting evidence;

- Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement in the
consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s fair value measurement of the investment
properties is supported by the available evidence.
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Equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income
Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group measured its equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. This fair value measurement is significant to our
audit because the balance of equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income of HK$54,497,000 as at 31 December 2024 and
the fair value loss of HK$21,788,000 for the year then ended are material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s fair value
measurement involves application of judgement and is based on assumptions
and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of the external
valuer engaged by Group;

- Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting with the external
valuer to discuss and challenge the valuation process, methodologies
used and market evidence to support significant judgments and
assumptions applied in the valuation model;

- Checking key assumptions and input data in the valuation model to
supporting evidence;

- Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement in the
consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group's fair value measurement of the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income is supported by the available
evidence.
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Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information in the Company’s annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements is located at the HKICPA's website at:

https://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/Standards/Our-views/auditre

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Fong Tak Ching

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number PO6353

Hong Kong, 26 March 2025
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
n‘7R 1%

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_ZE_NFE+_B=+—HILEE
2024 2023
—E_mF —T=F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
BIsE FHET FExT
Continuing operations FHERE XK
Revenue WA 5
Contracts with customers BEGHK 94,757 45,858
Leases HE 6,220 5,825
Interest under effective interest method BRAELETHE = 1,019
Total revenue BT A 100,977 52,702
Cost of revenue NP (79,658) (34,933)
Gross profit EH] 21,319 17,769
Other income =Rl YN 7 166 1,826
Other gains and losses Hham M k518 7 (25,635) (12,908)
Administrative expenses THRXZ (44,654) (48,162)
Impairment loss on goodwill EERERE 17 (15,013) -
Impairment losses under expected credit loss ~ FAHA{E E&518 (FBHAE EE1E))

(“ECL") model, net of reversal BENIE N RER R » HBR#EE(O] 8 (3,578) (2,310)
Share of results of associates DEEE AT EE (13,024) 2,898
Finance costs BB R AN 9 (375) -
Loss before taxation from continuing operations & B 5 A& 4S & 275 2 IR IR B A5 18 (80,794) (40,887)
Income tax (expense)/credit FTigis D) 1E% 11 (19) 479
Loss for the year from continuing operations ~ Z& BIFE 4SS ¥R~ REE I 12 (80,813) (40,408)
Discontinued operation JEIFBISE T
Profit for the year from discontinued operation 2K EIFIT@EEBERE 2 AEEHF] 37 = 3,112
Loss for the year TEERE (80,813) (37,296)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: THRIERGAFEE (5518)

Pkl
Owners of the Company KRBVHEB N
— from continuing operations —RBREEEER (80,813) (40,408)
— from discontinued operation —RBEIFFECSEETR - 1,807
(80,813) (38,601)
Non-controlling interests JEER SR
— from continuing operations —RBEFEREER - =
— from discontinued operation —RBIFFEREE = 1,305
- 1,305
(80,813) (37,296)
HK cents HK cents
AL =Xl
Loss per share FiEESE i3
— From continuing and discontinued —REFERIFFEREET
operations
Basic =N (4.79) (2.29)
Diluted f#5E (4.79) (2.29)
— From continuing operations —RBRHEREE
Basic =N (4.79) (2.40)
Diluted 58 (4.79) (2.40)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. BEMIPN 5T ez S B AR ERAVAR AL ER 7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mRHEHMEERTR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZE_ME+_A=+—HILEE

-ﬁAE

ARA

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Loss for the year TEERIE (80,813) (37,296)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income Hthzm GEIx) WA
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to BE#ETrSEFEEEm 2B
profit or loss:
Fair value changes on equity investments at fair BAFESBEMEEmIASER
value through other comprehensive income (MR FEHEBEMEEAT]
(“FVTOCI") iR 2L B2 AT EES (21,788) (11,623)
Share of other comprehensive expense of DEHE AR EMEEMX
associates (3,548) (1,639)
ltems that are or may be reclassified subsequently to B ZEFr 7488 H 1% O fE & EFT 7 4HE
profit or loss: EmzIEH
Exchange difference arising on translation to HWHEREEELZBERERE
presentation currency (5,735) (7,004)
Translation reserve reclassified to profit or loss RIEHEBEAE B ABE
upon deemed disposal of an associate/ BN EEER ERHE
subsidiaries 303 6,871
Share of other comprehensive expense of an DEHE AT EMEERX
associate (481) =
Other comprehensive expense for the year, TEEEMEERS  NRKRE
net of tax (31,249) (13,395)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEEZEPAZEEE (112,062) (50,691)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year FFIFEELAEER2HE B
attributable to: YA 458
Owners of the Company KRBHEBAN (112,062) (50,962)
Non-controlling interests JEPERR R R i - 271
(112,062) (50,691)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBRRAR

At 31 December 2024 HR_ZE_HE+_B=+—H

2024 2023
—EE 2=
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FHET FHET
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ER =Yy 15 53,864 54,659
Investment properties Sg—Ly/ES 16 110,695 135,768
Goodwill FEES 17 10,543 25,556
Interests in associates REE AR 2 A 18 91,442 127,141
Equity investments at FVTOCI AT ESEBEMEEIA
FERZ R E 19 54,497 61,000
Loan receivables Rl E= 21 2,762 -
Deposits paid BEE 24 450 =
324,253 404,124
Current assets ENEE
Inventories =58 22 20,285 19,401
Loan receivables EWE= 21 5,983 10,000
Trade receivables B 5 W 23 9,303 14,989
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments ~ ELffEWER 12 KR FE FUIE 24 16,092 20,977
Financial assets at fair value through profit or  Z/AFEFEBIETYEE (R AT
loss (“FVTPL”) BEFEBE@RIIR) 2EMEE 20 3,244 4,008
Deposits placed with non-bank financial EIERTT R RIEE 2 T
institutions 25 - 2
Tax recoverable AU [EIFRIE 81 917
Cash and cash equivalents REKRIREEEY 25 13,215 28,413
68,203 98,707

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2024

IREMBRRR

it st eS| = - — |8

2024 2023
ko111 e
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
M E FAET FET
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMELR 26 24,354 30,841
Lease liabilities HEESE 27 2,003 ~
Tax payables [ERXINE 19,032 19,047
Borrowings &R 28 2,767
48,156 49,888
Net current assets RBEEFE 20,047 48819
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEEE 344,300 454,943
Non-current liabilities JERENAR
Deposits received (=1 &n 246 =
Lease liabilities HEESE 27 3,173 =
3,419 -
Net assets BEFE 340,881 452943
Capital and reserves B iHEE
Share capital iEZiN 30 168,730 168,730
Reserves B 172,151 284,213
Total equity gL 340,881 452,943
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. MBI s B2 M SRRV AB A EE D
The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 155 were approved R EMBEEFICE 2 G BHREAN_Z "R
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2025 and are =8 _-+/\ B EEE St RIS RETIZE > WELL
signed on its behalf by: TEERKREE
WONG LIK PING SIU WAI BUN
EHFE HEE
Director Director
EE BE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
AEmEEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZE_Z

n\7R

oo T e S 2=

HiEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EQUITY

FARE AR
Investment
Share Share  Translation Other  revaluation Statutory ~ Accumulated Non-Controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reverse losses Sub-total interests Total
REEf I
Rk RIYEE  ERBE  HbEE M TR EHER Nt RRES 3t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000
Thn TEn TR TER TER TER TEL TEL TEL TFEL
(Note b) (Note a)
() ()
At 1 January 2023 R-2-=£-A-A 168,730 1557598 (10283) (15876) (24.957) 6397 (L178104) 503905 32754 536,659
(Loss)proftfor the year AEE (BB /57 - = = - - - (38601) (38601) 1305 (37,2%)
Other comprehensive incomel{expense) for the year  ZEEEMEEMA/ (%) - = 774 = (13,139) - - (12361) (1,034) (1339)
Total comprehensive income(expense) for e year  KXEE2EUA/ (%) B8 - = 774 = (13,135) - (38601) (50962) m (50,691)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries RIFHERBAT = = = = 4739 (6,397) 1658 = (33,025) (33,025)
Transfer o reserve upon disposal of equiy HERATEERAMZE
investments at FVTOC WG 2 R B
ERGE - - - - kY - (39) - - -
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 RIBZ=F+ZA=1+-H
RZ5-mE-F-8 168,730 1557598 (9,509) (15876) (32914) - (1215080) 45943 - 152943
Loss for the year rEESR - - - - - - (80,813) (80,813) - (80,813)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEERMEERY - - (9461) - (21,788) - - (31,249) - (31,249)
Total comprehensive expense for the year rEERAERYHAE - - (9,461) - (21,788) - (80,813)  (112,062) - (112,062)
Transfer of reserve upon deemed disposal RIEHERENRRBEGE
of an associate - - - - 398 - (398) - - -
At 31 December 2024 RIB-ME+"A=1+-A 168,730 1,557,598 (18,970) (15,876) (54,304) - (1,296,297) 340,881 - 340,881
Notes: BT
(a) As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of () R E A RAEME (THREL) BERIAREIRRE »

China (the “PRC"), before distribution of the net profit each year, the subsidiaries
established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of their net profit after taxation to the
statutory reserve (except where the reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’
registered capital). The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the directors
of the relevant subsidiaries and by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses
or increase capital.

(b) Other reserve represents the value of the contingent consideration arrangement on (b)

the escrow shares subject to the profit guarantee requirement of the acquisition

agreement in prior years.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mARERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_ZE_ME+_A=+—HILEE

2024 2023
—EE =T
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
M E FAET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KT
Loss before taxation FRIR B RS E
From continuing operations REFELCSETR (80,794) (40,887)
From discontinued operation KB IEFES S FETE = 3,111
Adjustments for: EH 5% -
Finance costs BATS A A 375 8,987
Depreciation of property, plant and ME--BENRREZITE
equipment 15 4,282 7,452
Fair value change on: NEEEE) !
— financial assets at FVTPL — B AT EBBEIERY R
ZEREE 7 764 (2,951)
— investment properties —EYE 7 21,030 7,973
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries RIELENB AT 2 W= 39 - (429)
Loss on deemed disposal of associates RIEHERE A T Z K18 7 3,375 691
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME BE KRBz WG
equipment ¥/ (1,159) -
Loss on write-off of property, plant and MEEYDEE - BB Rk 2 B5 18
equipment T 175 8
Net foreign exchange loss EREIRFER 7 128 31
Finance lease interest income MEEENBUWA - (2,595)
Interest income FEWA 7 (116) (1,979)
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment BRSBTS EZHE
loss) recognised on: B8 (REREERE) :
— finance lease receivables — R E R E R 8 - (6,338)
— trade receivables and other receivables — B 5 PR R ELAth FE U =R 8 2,823 3,576
— loan receivables —EWER 8 755 =
— goodwill —BE 17 15,013 -
Write-off of inventories FEME 7 487 =
Write-off of trade receivable B 5 EWE S 7 835 490
Share of results of associates PR 3= Y/NCTE 13,024 (2,898)
Operating cash flows before movements in EEESEHFI K ERE RS
working capital (19,003) (25,758)
Increase in inventories FEEM (1,756) (6,176)
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables, HthEWRR 2 MFENIE
deposits and prepayments PR ebi) 1,738 (10,661)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables B SRR (S0 4,598 (830)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B ENE ORL) g0 (2,295) 4,700
Decrease in other payables and accruals HME TR E AR (3,910) (7,679)
Increase in deposits received from customers B E B IS0 = 351
Decrease in financial assets at FVTPL BATESEBBERYRZ
SREERD - 13,033
Decrease in finance lease receivables MEREERTURD 246 4,628
Decrease in deposits placed with non-bank FERRIERI TSRS
financial institutions FRoR L 2 975
Cash used in operations REMAZRE (20,380) (27,417)
Income tax refunded/(paid) B[O (B) Frisi 802 (140)
Finance lease interest income received BN ERERER WA = 2,595
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING RETEBFAZIRE R
ACTIVITIES (19,578) (24,962)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E_ME TET=F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
i FHET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Addition of loan receivables FERE =R IE N = (11,662)
Repayment from loan receivables BERKER 500 331
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ~ BE B2 BB K&k E (4,242) (1,662)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE -BEK
and equipment RFEFTISTIE 6,801 =
Decrease in short-term bank deposits fEHRIRTTIEROR - 30,000
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries BIEHENB AR 38 - (572)
Interest received BUH B 116 1,979
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REEHRESHREFEE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 3,175 18,414
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEE
New borrowings FIEERR 35 2,809 -
Lease payments HER= 35 (1,220) (2,555)
Interest paid [SEREES (79) -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED) IN B4 EBIFR1E (FRR) IR F4E
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,510 (2,555)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERRESEN
EQUIVALENTS iR B (14,893) (9,103)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FVRERAETEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 28,413 38,143
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE SMNEEREE 2 FE
CHANGES (305) (627)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHRRERAETEEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 13,215 28,413
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash ~ IRERIVELEYZEFIH ¢
equivalents:
Bank balances and cash RITE R RIRE 13,215 28,413

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

im e MR R EE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _NFE+_F=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Ever Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”)
is a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information section on
the annual report.

During the year, the principal activities of the Group were sale of daily
necessities, medical, health and hygiene products, manufacturing and
sale of food products and nutrient enhancers, the trading of equity
securities, investment in properties, investment holdings, money
lending business, and provision of finance lease and related consulting
services in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

Items included in the financial statements of each of Group'’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “Functional Currency”).
The Functional Currency of operating subsidiaries in Hong Kong and
the PRC are Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") and Renminbi (“RMB”),
respectively. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK$ as the directors of the Company (the “Director”) consider that
it is a more appropriate presentation for a company listed on the
Stock Exchange and for the convenience of the shareholders of the
Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 16 Amendments in relation to Lease Liability in a Sale

and Leaseback
HKFRS 7 and Hong Kong Amendments in relation to Supplier Finance

Accounting Standard Arrangements
(“HKAS") 7
HKAS 1 Amendments in relation to Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current
HKAS 1 Amendments in relation to Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants
HK-int 5 Amendments in relation to Amendments to

HKAS 1

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG MBS IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKAS 21

HKFRS 7 and 9

HKFRS 7 and 9

HKFRS 18

HKFRS 19

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments in relation to Lack of Exchange
ability!

Amendments in relation to Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments?

Amendments in relation to Contracts
Referencing Nature — dependent
Electrically?

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements®

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability:
Disclosures®

Amendments in relation to Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Annual Improvement to Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7,

HKFRS Accounting HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 72
Standards — Volume
Al

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027.

A Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

The Directors anticipate that the application of these new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

6 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for certain financial instruments
and investment properties which have been measured at fair value.

With reference to the Company’s announcement date 8 February
2024, the Group no longer had control over the group of companies
comprised of Beijing Ever Grand International Financial Leasing
Co. Limited (“BJEG”) and its subsidiaries (“BJEG Group”) on 31
July 2023. As a result, the financial results of BJEG Group for the
period from 1 January to 31 July 2023 were deconsolidated from the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023 (the “Deconsolidation”) and have been accounted for as
associates of the Company thereafter.

BJEG Group is engaged in the financial leasing segment of the
Group. In accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations, the operating results of BJEG
Group for the period from 1 January to 31 July 2023 (the “Date of the
Deconsolidation”) and its results, through investment in associates,
for the remaining five months were presented under discontinued
operation and continuing operations in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2023 respectively.

On 1 August 2024, the Director, who held the board seat in BJEG, was
no longer served for and acting for the Group (the “Event”). The Group
lost its seat on the board of directors of BJEG, resulting in the loss of
its ability to exercise significant influence over BJEG in accordance
with HKAS 28, and thus BJEG ceased to be an associate of the Group.
The Group has therefore discontinued the use of the equity method
under HKAS 28 accounting for its investment in BJEG. Henceforth,
the Group’s investment in BJEG has been accounted for as equity
investments at FVTOCI since 1 August 2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the Directors to exercise their judgements
in the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving
critical judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Material accounting policies
Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it the current ability
to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting rights
as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to determine
whether it has control. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date the
control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net assets of that
subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and
any related accumulated exchange fluctuation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between the
non-controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which the costs are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured
at their acquisition-date fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share of
the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to
calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity interest in
the subsidiary were recognised in other comprehensive income (for
example, equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income), the amount that was recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised on the same basis as would be required if the
previously held equity interest were disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired.
Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
The method of measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same
as that of other assets as stated in the accounting policy below.
Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or
loss and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially measured
at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but not control or joint

control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby they
are initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount
are adjusted for the Group's share of the post-acquisition change
in the associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of the
Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised unless there is
an obligation to make good those losses. Any premium paid for an
associate above the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised
and included in the carrying amount of the associate. Where
there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate has
been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is tested for

impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group and its
associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’
interests in the associate. The investor’s share in the associate’s profits
and losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated against
the carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses provide
evidence of impairment of the asset transferred, they are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date
when the investment ceases to be an associate. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate and the retained interest is a
financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial

recognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

The difference between the carrying amount of the associate at the
date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing a part interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate. In addition, all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
are recognised on the same basis as would be required if that

associate had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate but the
Group continues to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest it that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
associates are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any. The
results of associates are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable during the year.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Executive Directors that make strategic
decisions.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the
contract, control of the goods or service may be transferred over time
or at a point in time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the goods or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, that is only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Existence of significant financing component

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable, discounted using
the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest method. For
contracts where the period between the payment and the transfer of
the promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading
of the translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and are translated at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs which are not eligible for capitalization to qualifying
assets are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are

recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised
as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax, as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences
arise from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
differences arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the related
lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes
requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets
over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax for such investment properties are measured
based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

Current and Deferred taxation for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for the business combination.

Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding lease
liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by the Group.
Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is
calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter of the asset's
useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments prepaid,
initial direct costs and the restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the lease payments discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined, or otherwise
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

EAMBHBRRZEUNEBEERS
AKEHEER @

EREHEEK (B
HE (#)
EFERE ()

st BELEREMS > FAAFERG
BZREMEZREEDRREREE
6] FRIFZIRRARIERIRIBRSN - BIREWE
B FITERNAER 2 X5EN HEHE
TEERBAAMIFERHE HEREY
PR E ZRBABDEERN D) AFER
ERRR GRS - 5B BRERBIER
EFREYMFERERIRA Y E TR Z X
E5EE

K F R R AEET R

BIER R AERR IE N R O D » IE AR E
MEEWANEZN B NERZEE R
S TEULTEST T » BIEARARIERR IR TR oAt
2EWAREZN B R
BaMETYS S5t EEEM E LR ENERTR
BEELERIAM S > BR BT AER
BHIEERERN-

HE
KEFEDEATEN

TS AR (A M (BT
ERAREERAEAES - ERRAE
LA R AT R ERTIA RS (270
AT U B EN AR SR E
TR (UBEEA ) PR M A
5t

ERREENRNA (EEEEa ARt
BT BRAEEREA TR EERE IR
B stE - HEEREFEEENTRINE
RE HEARMNEETHEE AEREE
PRSI KRR BRIERFEERE

EERHIRGE

Annual Report 2024
TENEFR

75



7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease term
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are leases with an initial
lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets are assets of value
below US$5,000.

The Group as lessor
Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as finance leases.
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the leases.

Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment
in the leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and leasehold land
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on their costs less their
residual values on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

Right-of-use assets
Leasehold improvements,
furniture and fixtures
Plant, machinery and

equipment
Motor vehicles

3 to 50 years

3 to 5 years or over lease term,
whichever is shorter

5 to 10 years

3 to 8 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course
of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Investment property is measured at cost
on initial recognition and subsequently at fair value with any change

therein recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is

derecognition.

Impairment losses on assets (other than financial assets and
goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of the following to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;
° right-of-use assets; and
° investments in subsidiaries and associates.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on assets (other than financial assets and
gooawill) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand,
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the asset within the timeframe established by
the market concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of investments
at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following
categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost;

- Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income; and

- Investments at fair value through profit or loss.
(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables)
are classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the assets give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less loss allowance for expected
credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading
as at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair values recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve. On derecognition of an
investment, the cumulative gains or losses previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve are not
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on these investments are recognised in profit or
loss, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part
of the cost of the investments.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified under this category if they do
not meet the conditions to be measured at amortised cost and
the conditions of debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is not held for trading as at fair value through
other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses
arising from changes in fair values recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
are net of any interest income and dividend income. Interest
income and dividend income are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating
ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis, based on the
Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information. Credit risk means the risk of
loss in respect of a financial instrument when the counterparty to the
financial instrument cannot execute its obligations.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual or a collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit
risk ratings.

Definition of default

The Group considers an event of default occurs when information
obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired when: (1)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired when:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or being more than 90
days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms
that the Group would not consider otherwise;

- it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because
of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in
the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over 1 years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default that is the magnitude of the loss if there is a default, and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default
and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights. The Group uses a practical
expedient in estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount is
recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including borrowings, trade
payables and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derivatives (including contingent considerations under business
combinations) are initially recognised and subsequently measured at
fair value with any gains or losses arising from changes in fair values
recognised in profit or loss.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Material accounting policies (Continued)
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. A contingent asset is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, where
necessary, when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When
inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

8

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. EZANBHRRZEUNEERE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL AEHEER @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Material accounting policies (Continued) BEAEHEEK (&
Related parties (Continued) FBr (&

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

0]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (i);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personal services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Significant influence over associates

Note 18 describes that Simagi Finance Company Limited (“Simagi”),
in which the Group has 6.82% (2023: 6.82%) ownership interest and
voting rights, is an associate of the Group as the Group has the right to
appoint at least one director in the board of directors of Simagi. As at
31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group considered it had the power
to exercise significant influence over Simagi by virtue of its contractual
right appointed one out of two directors in the board of directors of
Simagi.

Note 18 describes that BJEG, in which the Group has 51.39%
ownership interest, is an associate of the Group. As at 31 December
2023, the Group considered it had the power to exercise significant
influence over BJEG as one of the executive Directors remained in the
board of directors of BJEG.

As at 31 December 2024, there was no director nominated and
represented by the Group in the board of directors of BJEG due to the
Event. Given the disagreement of another shareholder of BJEG, the
Group is not able to appoint any new director or replace any existing
director in the board of directors of BJEG. Accordingly, the Group
considered that there was no significant influence over BJEG and
BJEG ceased to be an associate of the Group as at 1 August 2024.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Impairment loss on goodwill

The value in use is determined based on the cash flow projection for
the cash generating units (“CGUs”), discounted to their present values
and requires the use of key assumptions, including the discount rate,
terminal growth rate, budgeted sales and profit margin, taking into
account the financial budget approved by the Directors based on the
management’s experience from the distribution business and also
management’s expectations for the market development. As at 31
December 2024, the carrying amount of goodwill was approximately
HK$10,543,000 (2023: HK$25,556,000) and impairment loss on
goodwill of approximately HK$15,013,000 (2023: Nil) has been
recognised to consolidated statement of profit or loss. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 17.

Provision of ECL

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 across
all categories of financial assets requires significant judgment and
estimation, in particular, the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk and credit-impaired financial assets as well as the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral
values when determining impairment losses. These estimates are
driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in
different levels of allowances. At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
for exposures since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting date and
the date of initial recognition. The Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also forward-looking analysis. Details of the key
assumptions and inputs used are set out in note 34.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value of equity investments at FVTOCI

The fair value of equity investments at FVTOCI that are not traded in
an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods (such as
market approach and asset-based approach) and makes assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each statement
of financial position date. The key assumptions adopted on valuation
techniques and key inputs are based on management's best estimates
with assistance of the independent professional valuer.

Fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer to assess the
fair values of the investment properties. In determining the fair values,
the valuer has utilised a method of valuation which involves certain
estimates. The Directors have exercised their judgement and are
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE 5. KA
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: KREEREBWADHUT :
2024 2023
“EME =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEERAHWA
Asset management advisory service fee EEBELHRFERA
income - 1,942
Sale of HE
— food products and nutrient enhancers —BREmK&EERLE 6,397 2910
— Daily necessities, medical, health and —-BERER BERENMEEESR
hygiene products 88,360 42948
94,757 47,800
Interest under effective interest method BEFEZIETHE
Interest income from FEUWA
— finance lease receivables —REEEEW S = 2,595
— loan receivables —FEWE = 1,019
- 3,614
Leases e
Rental income WA 6,220 5,825
Total revenue “BUT A 100,977 57,239
Representing 5
Continuing operations FHEREER 100,977 52,702
Discontinued operation IS TS - 4,537
100,977 57,239
The revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 is EBMHEIREELFIREBEANKERS
disaggregated as follows: BHWADTRNT -
2024 2023
—EopuE s -=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Geographical information: M E R
The PRC H 6,397 4,852
Hong Kong s; 88,360 42,948
Revenue from contracts with customers KEHEEGHWRA 94,757 47,800
Timing of revenue recognition: WA TSR -
At a point in time NE—RE, 94,757 45,858
Over time R—ERRE A - 1,942
Revenue from contracts with customers KEHEEGHUWA 94,757 47,800

9 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

REVENUE (Continued)
Performance obligation for contracts with customers:

(i) Revenue for the provision of asset management advisory
services is recognised over time on time apportionment basis
as those services are provided throughout the contract period
at fixed consideration. Invoices are issued according to the
agreed payment schedule and are usually payable within 0-5
days.

(ii) Revenue for the sale of food products and nutrient enhancers
and sales of daily necessities, medical, health and hygiene
products is recognised at a point in time when customers
obtain control of the goods at the goods are delivered to and
have been accepted. Revenue is thus recognised upon when
the customers accepted the products. There is generally only
one performance obligation. Invoices are usually payable
within 0-60 days.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive Directors, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM”) of the Group, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on the nature of the operations of the Group.

The segment information reported below does not include any
amounts for the discontinued operation. During 2023, the definition
of Financial Leasing Segment was modified to only encompass
the share of associates’ results conducted by the BJEG Group for
the period from 1 August 2023 (i.e. the date immediately after the
Deconsolidation) to 31 December 2023.

During 2024, the BJEG Group remained as an associate of the
Group for the first seven-month period ended 31 July 2024 until it
was reclassified to equity investments at FVTOCI due to the Event.
Accordingly, the Financial Leasing Segment only covered its results for
the first seven-month period of 2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG MBS IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments from
continuing operations under HKFRS 8 Operating segments are as

follows:

Distribution -

Manufacturing -

Investment -

Financial leasing  —

sale of medical, health, hygiene products
and daily necessities (“Distribution
Segment”)

research and development, manufacturing
and sale of food products, new food
ingredients and nutritional enhancers in
the PRC (“Manufacturing Segment”)

investment properties in the PRC,
investments in securities and money
lending business in Hong Kong
(“Investment Segment”)

provision of finance lease consulting
services and financing services in the
PRC through investment in an associate
(“Financial Leasing Segment”)

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRa M IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. ZHEH @
Segment revenues and results DEUIA R 4R
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from UTARERZO 2RO IR D 2 RKETF
continuing operations by reportable segments. BREEBENWAREEZ Do
For the year ended 31 December BEf-—HA=+—HIFE
Continuing operations
REmeLy
Distribution Manufacturing Investment Finance leasing Total
pix -} tE BE HEHE szt
2024 203 2024 2023 2024 03 2024 223 2024 2023
—$-mg -S-c& C$-mE -F-=F CHCME -E--k CECME  -3-SF  C$CWE C0cH
HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKSOO0  HK$000  HKSOOD  HK$000  HKSOOD  HK$000  HKSO00
THET T TET FHET THET FET TFHET FhET FET TER
SEGMENT REVENUE SEUA
Ata point in time RE-FH 88,360 4948 6,397 2910 - - - . 94,757 45,858
From other source BHMRE - = - - 6,220 6,344 - - 6,220 6,844
88,360 8 6397 2910 6,20 684 = - 100977 52,702
SEGMENT RESULTS PLiES ] (19,279) (4960) 4679) (4569  (20451) (8524)  (14338) 2841 (58,747) (15612
Unallocated other income, gains and losses sk HECE A  Wiad
R (85) %
Unallocated corporate expenses FARES (19,901) (25,79)
Share of results of assoclates AREERTES (2,061) 457
Loss before taxation il (80,794) (40,887)

All of the segment revenues reported above are from external

customers.

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating segments
are the same as the Group's accounting policies. Segment results
represent the profit earned or loss incurred by each segment without
allocation of certain other income, certain other gains and losses
(not stated in other segment information below), share of results of
associates (except for BJEG Group) and corporate expenses. This
is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG MBS IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER @
Segment assets and liabilities NHEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by UTAREBEAERS B D EER
reportable segments. =N =Py i
At 31 December W+ZHA=+—H
Distribution Manufacturing Investment Finance leasing Total
pix -} tE ®E HMERE st
2024 23 2024 223 2024 2023 2024 223 2024 223
ZECME  CEC=E ZBIME  CRC-F ZBCmE I ZBCME CRC-F ZECME C3C=R
HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKSO00  HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HK$ 000
TiET FHET TiET FHT THET FhET THET FhET TERT TEw
SEGMENT ASSETS HHEE 46,567 64857 46,376 54527 188012 210918 = 000 280955 360392
Interests in associates REEARZ S 91,442 97,051
Unallocated corporate assets RAMZLEEE 20,059 45388
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS LaEE 392,456 502831
SEGMENT LIABILITIES Aafi 7315 5478 5,946 3398 7,349 10463 - - 20610 19339
Unallocated corporate liabilities RAMZLEEME 30,965 30549
CONSOLIDATED LIABILITIES 48R 51,575 49888

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating

resources among segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable and operating segments
other than an office premise for administrative purpose,
certain other receivables, certain deposits placed in non-bank
financial institutions and certain cash and cash equivalents;

and

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than certain other payables and certain tax

payables.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.

FEEEREEEEEARAR

AEEDBERRREDEZEANEER

F—REARTHENNRAZEY
BT HMEWE S ETFHFERR
SRIRTTERIEB . ERMURETR
ERIRESEYIN EEESRD
REAZ2|EEEDE ; &

RETHEMEMRRETRINE
S FTE B EHEDEEER 2RKE

B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

i = ) IN e
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. HWER @
Other segment information Hithp &k
For the year ended 31 December BEF-H=1+—HIFE
Continuing operations
BELELEE
Distribution Manufacturing Investment Finance leasing Total
M 4 ®E G Eh
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Z¥CmE CZ®C=E O Z®CME C®RC=F C¥CME CFCSF CSCME ZFCCE Z¥CME CRO=RE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAR FAT FAn FAT FAT FAT
Amounts charged/(credited) in the R BT EGI DT
measure of segment profitor loss or BENR/ G
segment assets: A
Addtions to property, plant and RENE BERZE
equipment 6,213 - 4282 1,663 - - - - 10,455 1663
Depreciation of property, plant and NE - -BRERRETE
equipment 1,044 - 1316 3793 1922 1310 - - 4,282 5103
Write-off of property, plant and equipment 412+ B Rk iss - - - I 175 % - J 175 £
Wiite-offof inventories feast v 4 - 483 - - - - - 487 -
Write-off of trade receivables BRRIM 835 40 - - - - - - 835 40
Fair value change on: ATEEE:
~financial assefs at FVTPL —RATERRER
SRz EREE - - - - 764 373 - - 764 3723
~ investment properties -RENE - = - o 21,030 7973 - = 21,030 7973
Loss on deemed disposal of associates  REHEBE AT 2 BB - - - - - 691 3375 - 3375 691
Impairment loss on goodwill BHEAERE 15,013 - - - - - - = 15,013 E
Impairment loss recognised on trade HESEBTREhELR
receivables and other receivables AEDOHEEE 2,823 2276 - kK 755 - - - 3578 2310
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM BT E&EAFE
but not included in the measure of REERAERHE
segment profit or loss: DEEHENTE:
Income tax (credt)/expense FgH (8%) /B% 3) (547) - 68 - - - - @) (479)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG MBS IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Information about major customers from continuing operations

DEER @

FRNBREEEXRIERRZEN

Revenue from customers of the Distribution Segment of both years
contributing over 10% of total sales of the Group are as follows:

MBEEZR B DD B E R A S BB
BEAI0%ZER ZIWAIT ¢

Continuing operations

FEREER
2024 2023
“EZME TET=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Distribution Segment: DEEDE

Customer A ZRA 21,994 8,588
Customer B! EFB! 35,617 N/A 38 8

L The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of revenue from
the Distribution Segment for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Geographical information

Distribution Segment is located in Hong Kong. Financial Leasing
Segment and Manufacturing Segment are located in the PRC.
Investment Segment comprises of investment properties and leasing
business in the PRC, while its money lending and investment in
securities businesses are carried out in Hong Kong. Locations are
determined according to principal place of operating the businesses.

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from continuing
operations and external customers based on the locations of
operations and information about its non-current assets other than
financial instruments by geographical location of the assets are

detailed below:

! BE_BR_-_F+"A=t+—HILEE
TEFEUS A EER D) $50 BRUR AT BB 10% ©

i B

DIFDBUNEB -BEBEDMREE
DEBAT PED - I B D AR BRI
WIREMERBEET MEARBHFES
PR ERKRERINE B BT RS
BT EERMBETE-

T RAERRBEEMIENREEEE
BRIMBZERWAZ D KiFERTA
SNERBIBEEMEEFEHEI DRER
SRR

Continuing operations

REREEYE
Revenue from external customers Non-current assets
REIMIEREA FRBEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
B mE TR ko 1113 B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TEx TERT TET
PRC ] 12,617 8,735 143,234 200,675
Hong Kong 55 88,360 43967 123,310 142,449
100,977 52,702 266,544 343,124

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. Hh A ~ Y sm K518
2024 2023
“EUE T e
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Other income HgA
Interest income from: FEBUA
— bank and non-bank financial institutions —R1T R IERIT S R4S 116 1,656
— other loan receivables —HMEWER - 323
Sundry income LLIENGN 50 1,724
166 3,703
Representing i5
Continuing operations TESEETS 166 1,826
Discontinued operation JEFFERE TS - 1,877
166 3,703
2024 2023
—E-mE 2 o =f&
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other gains and (losses) Htham K (§518)
Fair value change on: NFEEE) .
— financial assets at FVTPL — AT EHBEGYRZ
SRMEE (764) 2,951
— investment properties — KRB (21,030) (7,973)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWZE  BERLRHEZWE
equipment 1,159 -
Write-off of property, plant and equipment Y2~ RS Re 5 1 8 (175) -
Loss on deemed disposal of associates RIEREBEAB 2 EE (3,375) (691)
Write-off of trade receivables B 5 FEU I (835) (490)
Net foreign exchange loss PEREIBIFER (128) (31)
Write-off of inventories FE M (487) -
(25,635) (6,234)
Representing 15
Continuing operations R 25 (25,635) (12,908)
Discontinued operation JEIFERE X - 6,674
(25,635) (6,234)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_NHF+_F=+—HIEFE

8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER ECL MODEL, NET 8. FEHIEESEHEERXBETREELS

OF REVERSAL 18> PR #EE [
2024 2023
—E-ME BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment loss)  BEHESR F2E B Z R ER B,
recognised on: (R {ERE) :
— Trade receivables (Note 23) — BRI (f5123) (226) 283
— Other receivable (Note 24) —H AR (fi5124) (2,597) (3,859)
— Loan receivables (Note 21) —FEWER (f15E21) (755) =
— Finance lease receivables —RhETEEEWER - 6,338
(3,578) 2,762
Representing EiS
Continuing operations FFEREER (3,578) (2,310)
Discontinued operation JEFESE TR - 5072
(3,578) 2,762
Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 34 to the AE G BN A e TSR RMIEE34 0
consolidated financial statements.
9.  FINANCE COSTS 9. MBEE
2024 2023
—E-mE 2 =&
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FExT
Interest on lease liabilities HEaENE 183 39
Interest on bank borrowing IRITERAE 79 =
Interest on other loan HthE&:FE 113 =
375 39
Representing 15
Continuing operations FHEREER 375 =
Discontinued operation JERFBERE X - 39
375 39

10 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRa M IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 10. EX -FETHAERESH
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS )i
(@ Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERFETHASHN
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors and BENHEMSESREETHAS
chief executives were as follows: ZEEI S -
2024
ZEINE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonus  contributions Total
&R BIKEF
g RHMEN miETEa BEEEA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FTAT TERT TAT FTERT
(Note (i)
(RfFsE())
Executive Directors BIES
Mr. Wong Lik Ping ThHERE - 5,770 - 18 5,788
Mr. Siu Wai Bun BEREE = 1,950 = 18 1,968
Mr. Tao Ke GEp = 120 = 6 126
Mr. Qiao Weibing (Note (vi)) B4 (izE(v) - 153 - 5 158
Mr. Ng Tin Shui SXBLE - 600 - - 600
Sub-total NG = 8,593 = 47 8,640
Non-executive Director FERITES
Ms. Yip Man Yi et 120 - - = 120
Independent non-executive I IEHITES
Directors
Mr. Wu Kai Tang R E 180 - - - 180
Mr. Ng Kwok Sang (Note (vii)) R EI4E 704 (FaE(vi) 134 - - - 134
Mr. Ho Hin Yip (Note (ix)) ~ If72584 (B 5E(x) 175 - - - 175
Mr. Leung You Ming, David ~ ZRHBIEE 4 128 - - - 128
Mr. Lo Tsun Yu (Note (vii)) ~ EEF & (5Eii) 46 = = = 46
Sub-total INET 663 = = = 663
Total 4Bt 783 8,593 - 47 9,423
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 10. EE -FETHAERESH
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) i ()
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued) (a) EERTETHRABEHMN @&
2023
ETCE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonus contributions Total
e B BIRER
e KEHMEF [l fal SHEIER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FTAT FAET TART AT
(Note (i)
(F3EG))
Executive Directors BIES
Mr. Wong Lik Ping THERE = 6,930 = 18 6,948
Mr. Siu Wai Bun (Note (i) EERIRITAE (f=E() - 905 = 8 913
Mr. Lai Ka Fai (Note (i)~ ZRE1B504E (HIEKi) - 1515 = 11 1,526
Mr. Tao Ke R = 1,020 = 16 1,036
Mr. Qiao Weibing BEERE = 1,051 = 18 1,069
Mr. Ng Tin Shui SXELE - 650 - - 650
Sub-total INEF - 12,071 - 71 12,142
Non-executive Director FERITES
Ms. Yip Man Yi et 120 = = = 120
Independent non-executive JEIIIEHITES
Directors
Mr. Wu Kai Tang (Note (iv)) ~ RRUBE 4 (E(v) 75 = = = 75
Mr. U Keng Tin (Note (v)) ~ REXEE (W) 105 = = = 105
Mr. Ho Hin Yip CEnE S 180 = = = 180
Mr. Leung You Ming, David ~ ZRiBIEE 4 180 = = = 180
Mr. Lo Tsun Yu BEEFRE 180 = = = 180
Sub-total INET 720 = = = 720
Total st 840 12,071 - 71 12,982

1() CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

() The discretionary bonus is based on operating appraisal
results and basic salary of each director with reference to the
contribution to the Group for the annual operating results and the
individual performance.

(ii) Mr. Siu Wai Bun was appointed as an executive Director on 31
July 2023.

(iii) Mr. Lai Ka Fai resigned as an executive Director on 31 July 2023.

(iv) Mr. Wu Kai Tang was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 31 August 2023.

(v) Mr. U Keng Tin resigned as an independent non-executive
Director on 31 August 2023.

(vi) Mr. Qiao Weibing resigned as an executive Director on 3 April
2024 and served as vice president from 3 April to 1 August
2024.

(vii) Mr. Ng Kwok Sang was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 3 April 2024.

(viii) Mr. Lo Tsun Yu resigned as an independent non-executive
Director on 3 April 2024.

(ix) Mr. Ho Hin Yip resigned as an independent non-executive

Director on 21 December 2024.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-
executive director’s and the independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as Directors.

There was no arrangement under which a Director or the
chief executive of the Company waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023. In addition, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
any of the Directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining
the Group or as a compensation for loss of office for the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Consideration provided to third parties for making available
directors’ services

The Company did not pay consideration to any third parties for
making available directors’ services during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.

10.

(a)

EFE - FETHRAERESH
) W)

EERIBITBRASHMN (&)
MaE

0] BBTEARBEETEGERK
BREFZEAHD 2REEKE
B FEREEE SMREA
RIRETE

(i) REMAEENR _E=FtA
=t BEZERNTES-

(iii REBEEEN T _=FtH
=t+—HRERTES-

(v) HERALEER S _=F/\8
=+ —HEZESBUIFNTE
=o

v) REXREEEBNR_T_=F/\H
=+ —HEMEEIIERITES-

(vi) BEACERNR _S_NEN
AZHBIERTES IR T
_HEMB=AEN\B—HB#E

Rl

(vii) SE4AEREER ST TOFM
B=HEZEABUIFNITE
=o

(vii) ERFAEER_Z_WEMN

A=BREBIUFNTESE-

(ix) ATELEENR _S_NE+—
AZ+—HBEBIENTE
$o

EXFRIZ AITERFHIN D EER
REMABRARR A EREES
BIRMBIBRTS - LRI Z IERAT
EEBUIFNTEEFHNHEE
AR FAER MR

B= + EIJJ:EEJ*F’iItﬂtZIK NEJE
ENE2THABRENEETHE
ERMER 2B N BE—
| T =y e = = =
HIEEE  AERMEREAES
SR ETFR B (AR EL AN A SN AZ
SRR BRI F R E

HIEREFRBMAE=F1E
HEgE

HE_ B _NFER_EB_=—F+_
B=+—HIEFE » KRB W ERR
REEBERBEEME=SZER
Eo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Continued)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporates and
connected entities with such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of
the Directors, body corporate controlled by such directors or
entities connected with such directors that were entered into
or subsisted during the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023.

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Directors are of
the opinion that no transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included two Directors (2023: five), details of whose
remuneration are set out above. Details of the remuneration
for the year ended 31 December 2024 of the remaining three
highest paid employees who are neither directors nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

10.

(b)

EITBAEREEH

EEXRTBTHRASHMN (&

BRUEE ZHEMEANERER
ZEEFNHEERBZEDA
BB BB REMXZHE
#/5/

REBEEZZNERZZI=F
+ZB=+—RIFEE WETT
REFEETAUES ZEESFE
A ANERE S EERIE SRS
AHEHANER  EERREM
%o

EFERRG RHHSHFHIE
At

SRR EHMEBOFMREEIN &
AR ERINBE_Z_F
RZF-_=F+"RA=+—HILF
FEWE@E%FE BETEAARR
JHMH BEEEN ET R EEE
E%kf“‘ﬁ'ﬁéﬁﬁ’&?%?ﬁ%ﬁz
BEARRG ZHRER

& & #r

FRoAERRLEREHESSE
MEERECT=F 1% F%
FEGEBEHN EXX-BE-ZS Y
E+ZB=+—HILEE B T=
LA ANBEERFETHAE
MRS EEFENFEBNT

2024 2023

—ETmEF T =F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥4 ~ 285 R EAMEF) 2,608 =
Retirement benefit scheme BN EIHER

contributions 54 -

Total 4Bt 2,662 -

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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10. DIRECTORS’ CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

10. SR -FETHAERESH

Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

B ()

(b)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not
the directors and chief executive of the Company whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

EE M (&)
WIFAABDEEREBTHAS
HM BN T SEERNRSHE
BABWT :

No. of employees

EEAE
2024 2023
—EE e
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T35 1,000,00058 7T 2 -
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,000 75,2 1,500,0005 75 1 =
Total 3 -

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no remuneration
was paid by the Group to any of the highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office (2023: Nil). There were no
arrangements under which any of the highest paid individuals
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year

ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

REE-Z_-_NOFE+-"B=+—H
IEEE AEEBERTAREH
B A =S A B EAE A
MAASE B & 2 2B (E A BT
BCEI=F /) HE_ZTZ

E+ZB=+—HILEFE  WHEE
AREHINA TRERREREE
I CR-=F )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG MBS IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

11. TAXATION 11. #I18
2024 2023
fnl= el 1= 3 BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Current tax: BIARTRIA :
Hong Kong Profits Tax EAEANER - 81
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R 1 2 FTISHR 22 155
22 236
Over provision in prior years: BEEEBERMH
Hong Kong Profits Tax EAEANER (3) (628)
Deferred tax credit IRIERIEIR R - (88)
Income tax expense/(credit) for the year REEFERES (KR 19 (480)
Representing 5
Continuing operations FEREETE 19 (479)
Discontinued operation RIS RS - (1)
19 (480)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong Profits tax,
the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits of a qualifying
corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The two-tiered
profits tax rates regime was applicable to the Group for the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at the rate of 16.5%.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) is calculated at the applicable
rates based on estimated taxable income earned by the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group with certain tax concession, based on
existing legislation, interpretation and practice in respect thereof.
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprises Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the applicable PRC EIT
rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEERENEEEERAE

RIBFEFRR 2 AR M ARSGIGEE >
HERKEBE T E 2,000,000/ 7T 2 (& 5 FE
SR E M 128.25% I A MR I > M 88
2,000,000 7T 2 {5 TR &£ 16.5%
MEGMRIB-FBRMAFNEEZS
TNERIEZI=F+ZA=+—HIHF
EREBNRALER - FAREFERMARSZ
EETREEFIBHER16.5% 2 15 T4
;‘fﬁo
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11.

TAXATION (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1,

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)/profit before

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

|

REBnRZ AFERBRGRKRA (BE)

taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows: R EERINE ¢
2024 2023
—ETmE e T e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT THET
(Loss)/profit before taxation for the year REERRRA (518 5F)
From continuing operations KEIFERSER (80,794) (40,887)
From discontinued operation KEIFFELSEET - SAINIA
(80,794) (37,776)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate (Note) RENFTISIRREFE 2 RIE (s (13,911) (7,058)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax ~ FEIRTFE T = B H0E 2 H
purpose IR E 6,632 6,264
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax TIRFEM = BERRUBA
purpose 2B 9 (3,861)
Tax effect of temporary differences not RERENEE BT E
recognised 142 141
Tax effect of share of results of associates DEBE N EBE I MBLE 3,924 (478)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AR RER 2 RNIBEIE
recognised (389) -
Over provision in prior year BEFEBERSB (3) (628)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERIR BRI M E 3,633 5,140
Income tax expense/(credit) for the year KREEFEHRAS (E%R) 19 (480)

Note:

The domestic tax rate applicable to profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned

is used.

M RAERRAEMRBEEEENZEARR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING 12. REFEREEBRZEFES
OPERATIONS 18
Loss for the year from continuing operations has been arrived at after RBFEQEEE 2 AFERIETHERE
charging the following items: THIEIERER :
2024 2023
—ENE BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Auditor's remuneration ZEEMIN S 930 1,250
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #)% B R R HEITE 260 602
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BRELENE 4,022 4,501
Total depreciation HTEE4BZE 4,282 5,103
Cost of inventories sold (included in cost of BEEFEEMA GTAWARA)
revenue) 79,658 34933
Staff costs: BT :
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments B KT 21T 2 3B 9,423 12,531
Other staff costs HthE T A
— Salaries and other benefits —$r & M HAhE R 11,764 10,972
— Discretionary bonus —ByIBTE4L 161 34
— Retirement benefit scheme —RAREHETEHR
contributions 682 972
Total staff costs SEN N 22,030 24,509

10 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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13.

14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRa M IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

LOSS PER SHARE 13. SREIE
The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share AT NELSRERKEE (5518)
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following S BARUTERTE -
data:
2024 2023
“EME m T g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
(Loss)/profit (#518) &7
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to KABER NELAEE
owners of the Company (&518) &# (80,813) (38,601)
— from continuing operations — IR EIFEE T (80,813) (40,408)
— from discontinued operation —RBIFTFELE X - 1,807
2024 2023
—EE e |
'000 ‘000
Th TFB&
Number of shares L E ]
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of MUt HEREARR#EE (58
basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share Bz EZERHE 1,687,303 1,687,303

Basic loss per share from the discontinued operation is HK$Nil per
share (2023: basic earnings per share of HK$0.11 cents), based
on the profit for the year from discontinued operation attributable
to the owners of the Company of approximately HK$Nil (2023:
HK$1,807,000) and the denominators used are the same as those
detailed above.

The Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue during
the current and prior year and, therefore, the diluted (loss)/earnings
per share is the same as basic (loss)/earnings per share for the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid, declared or proposed during the year ended
31 December 2024, nor had any dividend been declared or proposed
since the end of the reporting period (2023: Nil).

14.

REBAAB A ANELIFSEREEBT

MBI (CTET=4 1,807,000
7A7T) RFTRA D B8R EXFrEFTIERR 2 2k
BIFR@BEEEGNERENGEAER
TEW CE-=F : SREAEF01LE
il)

RRBRAFEEFBEFEN S EEE
ZER AL #E-STNERTS TS
F+ZRA=+—HLEE SREE (518
/BREERER 8 BRER

iz 2

BE_ T MF+"_HA=+—HILFE"
BN EIRSHEKERRE 1R EH
RETESRIERZRGTETRE CF

T=FIHE)o

Annual Report 2024
T NEFR

109



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ME-BEKRRZE
(1) Reconciliation of carrying amount (1) REEZHIEK
Leasehold Plant,
improvements, machinery
Right-of-use fumiture and and Motor ~ Construction in
assets fixtures equipment vehicles progress Total
AENEEE. B 8
FREEE FERKE R RE HRIR st
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TEn TiEn TEn T TR TiEn
Cost i
At 1 January 2023 RZE-=%-B-H 97850 n 9,585 3683 - 111,159
Exchange realignment EREE 2231) - (260) (139) 0] (2634)
Additions HE 5530 - 46 - 659 6,635
Write-off it - (1) (133 - - (204)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries RIELERBAT (32,341) - (467) 2617 - (35,425)
At31 December 2023and 1 Januay ~ RZE_=£+-B=+-HEK
2024 “5_nmE-f-A 68,808 - 9,171 897 655 79,531
Exchange realignment EREE (1,202) = (389) @ ®) (1,601)
Additions HE 6,213 - 4,242 - - 10,455
Write-off s (341) = (44) = - (385)
Transfer = - - 647 - (647) -
Disposal HE (9,700) - 8) - - (9,708)
At 31 December 2024 K-%-mE+-A=+-H 63,778 - 13,619 895 - 78,292
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND - B3tHFERiAfE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2023 R-E-_=%-F-A 14372 66 7,39 1415 - 2247
Exchange realignment ERHE (268) - (206) (70) - (544)
Charge for the year KEESH 643 = 651 36 = 745
Write-off it - (66) (130) - - (19)
Deemed disposal of subsidaries RIELERBAT (3915) - (304) (848) - (5,087)
At31 December 2023 and 1Januay  R-E_ZF+_A=+-HkK
2024 “5_nE-p-A 16,624 - 7,385 863 - 24,872
Exchange realignment ERHE (207) - (241) @ - (450)
Charge for the year FEETH 4,022 - 258 2 - 4,282
Write-off s (180) = (30) - - (210)
Eliminated on disposal HERHE (4,065) - (1) - - (4,066)
At 31 December 2024 RZE_ME+-A=t+-A 16,194 - 7311 863 - 24,428
CARRYING AMOUNT I
At 31 December 2024 RZE-ME+ZA=1+-H 47,584 - 6,248 32 - 53,864
At 31 December 2023 RZZ-=F+"A=1-H 2,184 - 1,786 34 605 54,659

1 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(2)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRa M IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

Right-of-use assets (2)

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by

15. ME - -BEKRHRE(

ERERE

&)

IR EERR B DHERREE

class of underlying asset is as follows: MEREFEZ DTN T -
2024 2023
—E-ME (T2 i E= Y
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Ownership interests in leasehold land  FEBRAZHEE T &AET
and buildings held for own use 2B ERER 42,416 52,184
Lease contracts for office premises WMAEYERBEZHESR
and warehouses 5,168 -
47,584 52,184

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building held for
own use represent the Group’s land use rights and leasehold
interests on leasehold land and building located in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire these leasehold land and building in the PRC and
Hong Kong and the lump sum payments cannot be allocated
to the leasehold land and buildings portions. Accordingly,
the whole lump sum payments are classified as right-of-use
assets and carried at the depreciated cost.

Leases of office premises and warehouse classified as right-of-

FABRZAELMREF 2 H#R
R E IS AERUN EBRTER
THE TR TR T SRR
ER-AEEERFH—RNEEER
ARUHIR R P R & BRI
HE T HRIBTF o —RIE 2T
DB ERE L ARTFE D o
Fit > 2 —RIE RN RRERLE
A ERREENIZITENAS R

AR ERREENRAEYER

use assets have lease terms of 36 months. BEZEIA36EA o
Disclosures of lease-related items are as follows: FHEEAEEREWT !
2024 2023
—E_NE SEE T =E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Expenses relating to short-term leases BRAMGEARE 2 975 1,109
Expenses relating to leases of low-value BRIREEZEERE 2%
assets excluding short-term leases of A EBIEEEBEBEEENEHEE
low-value assets 48 b4
Total cash outflow for leases ERSRHAEEE 2,243 3,718

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not enter into any
lease that is not yet commenced (2023: Nil).

REZTNELTHA=+—Ho 2
S TR RBANEE
(ET=EE vim)e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out industrial properties under operating leases with
rental receivable monthly. The lease typically run for an initial period
of 2 to 5 years, with unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond initial
period held by lessee only.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the
lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective
functional currencies of group entity. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase
the property at the end of lease term.

16.

REME

FERRBECEREHATEYE B
SRAWE -AENTRHR—RAMEL
FEEREABRESEERGER

AEB I ERAE 2 P E Ry NE E R
RAFrARENERERE B8NS
isHE - HESHNTEERGREEERK
S HABANRTRIEREBEZYE S
=2

2024 2023

—EZNE TET=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FET

Fair value NFE

Balance at beginning of the year FY 2 iR 135,768 147,670
Net loss from fair value change N EEE 2 FEI8FEE (21,030) (7,973)
Exchange realignment BE R FEEE (4,043) (3,929)
Balance at end of the year FRZHEER 110,695 135,768

The fair value of the Group's investment properties as at 31 December
2024 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on
that date by Masterpiece Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEERENEEEERAE

FEBELEMER S _NFE+A
= +—HZRAFEDENELISEREE
H{EME NHEFEAR R A BN ZHE
T EERH.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16.

The Group engages the independent qualified valuer to perform
the valuation. The management of the Company works closely with
them to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the model. In determining the fair value of the relevant properties,
the management of the Company has determined the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements. In
estimating the fair value of the relevant properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

Valuation techniques, significant unobservable inputs and their
relationship to the fair value of each investment property are set out as
follows:

BKEME ®

FEREZREY S ERGEMETEE
FABEEEEABUSERLEMERS
B RRARTEBE 2 HERMNREAE
e NEERRMMEZ AT ER  AATE
EEREEANATESEZEERMR
BAE R} AR R 2 A THER 4
ErRekRERRSHEHBRBR.

HERM  EAT I HRERHARBRER
BREMENTHERRRGESIWT

Significant Relationship of unobservable
Valuation technique(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
TRIER R A B0
hERS* BEARTERAEARE BEATEMNRE
Industrial units located 2024: Income approach i) Reversionary yield: 5.5% An increase in the reversionary
in Shanghai yield would result in a
decrease in market value,
and vice versa.
IR BN TEEN 2 TF G E ) EEWE 55% BRWRIEMEENHmE
B R ZTRER
i) Market rental unit rate, An increase in the market unit
taking into account the rate used would result in an
recent transaction prices for increase in fair value, and
similar properties adjusted vice versa.

for the nature, location and
conditions of the property,
which ranged from RMB44
to RMB53 per square meter.
i) THISEEBEE st FRAEMMEIZMEER
MZEBVEEARZ S BN » 1 RIEEE RZIRA
A B~ B R AR
TEHEREE N FETHK
ARMEIATE AREES3

JT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. KREME @
Significant Relationship of unobservable
Valuation technique(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
el A
HEA BARTRR@ A BIE BATENRG
2023: Income approach i) Reversionary yield: 5.3% An increase in the reversionary

yield would result in a
decrease in market value,
and vice versa.

“EC=F L EE ) R | 5.3% R HEENEERHE
B RZIRFR

i) Market rental unit rate, taking ~ An increase in the market unit

into account the recent rate used would result in an
transaction prices for similar increase in fair value, and
properties adjusted for vice versa.

the nature, location and
conditions of the property,
which ranged from RMB49
to RMB58 per square meter.

i) MIBHEEEE TREMUY PITRBAHEENEER
ERFHARZ Z B > Wt NTEEN RZIRA
MM B ~ B KRR
A% NFETEHK
ARBAOTTE ARTESS

JT ©

Industrial units located 2024: Income approach and i) Reversionary yield for income An increase in the reversionary
in Liaoning Province ~ market approach approach: 6.25% yield would result in a
decrease in market value,
and vice versa.

IREZEEN “ENEF  WEER N WEERERING  6.25% ERE@mENEERHE
TEMNL Mm% B RZIRFR
i) Market rental unit rate, An increase in the market unit
taking into account the rate used would result in an
recent transaction prices for increase in fair value, and
similar properties adjusted vice versa.

for the nature, location and
conditions of the property,
which ranged from RMB5 to
RMB6 per square meter.

i) THIZEEBEE st FrAEMTEEMEER
MZEBPEEARZ R BN > NEEEN RZIRA
AL E ~ R AR
EHBEE > N FEFEHK
ARESTTE ARG

1 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEERENEEEERAE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Valuation technique(s)

HESE

16.

Significant
unobservable input(s)

EAFARRBARE

KEME ®

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

FRIBREBARE
SR TERE

2023: Income approach and
market approach

“ETT=F AR
A

The fair value measurement is categorised into Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy and there were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the

years end 31 December 2024 and 2023.

i)

i)

i)

i)

Land market price ranged from
RMB401 to RMB411 per
square meter

ITHHENFEFIHK
ART401TE ARTEALL

7T

Reversionary yield for income
approach: 6.25%

W A BY4E B U aT | 6.25%

Market rental unit rate, taking
into account the recent
transaction prices for similar
properties adjusted for
the nature, location and
conditions of the property,
which ranged from RMB5 to
RMB8 per square meter.

MHEEEE 5T AL
MZEBPREARZ ZER > T
A B ~ R AR
EHBEE > N FEFEH K
AR®ESTTE ARKEST

Land market price ranged
from RMB401 to RMB424
per square meter

ITHHENFEFIHK
ART401TE AR K424

7C

An increase in the market
price used would result in
an increase in fair value, and
vice versa.

FrAmEEMEENATE
BN RZIRFR

An increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a
decrease in market value,
and vice versa.

BRI EEMEENHE
B RZIRFR

An increase in the market unit
rate used would result in an
increase in fair value, and
vice versa.

FRAABEAMEEMEELR
ANFEM RZTFAR

An increase in the market
price used would result in
an increase in fair value, and
vice versa.

FrAmEEMEEN A TE
BN RZIRFR

NFEEFEFBARAFEERGEZ FIMHK
A RBE_ S _NER_B_=F+_

B=1—HLLFE  F34RA MR A T8

Ho
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

Management determined the EBIT margin based on past
performance, expectations regarding market development, and the
business model the entity undertakes. The growth rates do not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the business in the markets in
which each of the CGUs currently operates. The discount rates reflect
specific risks relating to the CGU.

The recoverable amount of the Distribution CGU based on the value-
in-use calculation was lower than its carrying amount at 31 December
2024. Accordingly, an impairment loss on goodwill of approximately
HK$15,013,000 (2023: Nill) was recognised in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEERENEEEERAE

17. GOODWILL 17. &2
2024 2023
fnl= el 1= 3 BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Carrying amount IRMEE
Balance at beginning of the year FY 2 iR 25,556 25,556
Impairment loss recognised during the year FERNERRERE (15,013) -
Balance at end of the year FRZHEER 10,543 25,556
For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amounts of MBENSAMS  BENEREESRE
goodwill allocated to a subsidiary, Tripler Holdings Ltd., in the DHEHABNNBABDR/IIEXEERAT
Distribution Segment (the “Distribution CGU"). The recoverable (MRS ELEM) - REELEN
amount of CGU is determined based on a value-in-use calculation Be el &8 EEAARE B ERNE L
with the assistance of the independent professional qualified valuer BELSERGEMBE TRIREREE
not connected with the Group. The calculation uses cash flow AHEE BREERERSERMMT
projections based on financial budgets approved by the management EHNEAFHRENYEEENRERE
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are FERMEL - B A FEBIRE RETHE
extrapolated using the estimated terminal growth rates stated below. BB Pt B 5T 4R Im 18 R A M o
The major underlying assumptions on the value-in-use calculation are RIFEABESENEEMREBRAEBITH
EBIT margin, discount rates and growth rates. HEARREIE R
2024 2023
—E-mE —=—=fF
EBIT margin (average of next five years) EBITAEE CRIRAFEFHEE) 6.6% 12.7%
Discount rate ARIR= 13.5% 13.3%
Growth rate BEX 2.5% 2.5%

BEERBBERE HHERNTEHLL
FASRAB RS R AR X BB N EEEBITHH
R RERIGBURREEETEMER
EEMETSNEBRATHERE PR
ERRITIRE K BREIR T E £ B AR
BERE-

REEREESEND RS ELEEN
REIREISBEERER S -MFE+T
B=+—HHNEKREE R - BEZZF
TmE+ZRA=+t—HNEEREBEY
15013000787 (T == : %) 8=
SR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

18. RBERRZED

2024 2023
—EME e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Unlisted investments at cost B A2 IELHRE 104,063 131,932
Share of accumulated post-acquisition loss MR WEREEEREMEE
and other comprehensive expense, net of Bz fNBREWRE
dividend received (12,621) (4,791)
91,442 127,141

The following is the particulars of the associates, which are unlisted

corporate entities whose quoted market price is not available:

Details of the Company’s associates at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

NTFRIFLHRBERENETBREZ
HHEABRIEFIR

RABNREARZBERTFIBAT !

Place of Proportion of
incorporation Issued and ownership interest Principal activities
Name and operation paid up capital attributable to the Company
AR BET KRR
218 e BEESX FRB R 2 Lh TEEH
2024 2023
—E-ME =
Simagi (Note a) Hong Kong Ordinary shares 6.82% 6.82%  Investment holding and money lending
HK$628,946,000 business
(2023:
HK$628,946,000)
Simagi (Fifzta) B LER 6.82% 682% REERRMEER
628,946,000 75
(EES=E:
628,946,000 7T)
Top Insight Holdings Limited  British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares 34.70% 34.70%  Investment holding whose subsidiaries
(“Top Insight”) (“BVI") US$1,052 are engaged in investment property
(2023: holding businesses
US$1,052)
Top Insight Holdings Limited ZEBEZES ZER 34.70% 3470%  KEER HEBAH
(Mop Insight 1) (HERLES) 1,052% 7T WEREM=ERES
(ZEEeES:
1,052%7T)
BJEG (Note b) The PRC US$38,000,000 N/A 51.39% Provision of finance lease and related
consulting services in the PRC
IRIEE (Hi5Hh) a2 38,000,000% 7% FiEA 51.39%  TEHERMHMBERER

R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

18.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Pursuant to the subscription agreement entered into between the Group’s
subsidiary and Simagi, the Group was entitled to have contractual right to
appoint director on the board and involved in participation in the financial
and operating policies decisions of Simagi. Accordingly the Directors
considered that the Group could exercise significant influence over Simagi
and this investment has been accounted for as associates.

With reference to the Company’s announcement dated 8 February 2024,
the Group is unable to have dominating control over BJEG's board of
directors or control over BJEG from 31 July 2023 onward. Since under
BJEG’s articles no provisions on the shareholders’ meeting of BJEG is
available, the Group would not be able to exercise control over BJEG with
its voting rights as a majority shareholder of BJEG or have control over the
management of BJEG even it is interested in over 50% of the equity interest
of BJEG. The Directors considered that the Group could exercise significant
influence over BJEG's board of directors through one existing board seat
and this investment has been accounted for as associates from 31 July
2023.

During the year, the Director, who held the abovementioned board seat, was
no longer served for and acting for the Group. The Group lost its seat on
the board of directors of BJEG, resulting in the loss of its ability to exercise
significant influence over BJEG in accordance with HKAS 28, and thus
BJEG ceased to be an associate of the Group. The Group has therefore
discontinued the use of the equity method under HKAS 28 accounting for
its investment in BJEG. Henceforth, the Group’s investment in BJEG has
been accounted for as equity investments at FVTOCI since 1 August 2024.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the unpaid registered capital of BJEG
was US$42,000,000, to which the Group shall contribute US$22,610,000
according to the proportion of its shareholding.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
FEERREEEEEERAR

18. HHEEA

BdsE

(a)

(b)

NEIZ R @

TRIBAS & B b [ /A 5] B2Simagis] 1L B0 58
g NEEZE SR AIREESM
ASimagVESE > W2 EM B RCE R
o[t > EEDA  AEE A HSimagi T1E

BAFE BZEECARINAKE A
e

BREAATEAR_ZMFE—ANAHN
AEFAEEBRE_=FtA=+—H
AT RIBREF TR R IEHER
RRENIIRIERE BN RIERERMA
Al Em AR RIERRRAGHE B
fEAERAEA IR IEEBIBo0%HIRIE &
EETEEUIERIEEARREMD BB
TAEH I RBRTRERNE NEEE
FILRIERENEIR -EEDR NEE IS
B—ERAEREFEUHNIIREREES
THREATE BZREB"F_=F
TA=T—BEFESHEQAT AR
RAFE R LAEEEREUNEES
BRAERERILARERTE -RES
BT AERIEE285E ) AEM WK RIES
EREFUERAEENIRERTHE
FENZEN AlLERERFEAE
%IH%%’AT oAt AEBEELRES
B ERERERENIERERNKRE
DitgEm & sHE AR BILLE  REEIIL
,'?\’\E;?B’Jhég_v_ﬂfﬁl\ﬁ HiEEA

RIBBRATEEBAMEEBATIERZ
R E -
N TR NERE=F+RA=+—

B 5B % < REEE & 2457342,000,000
En AR AEERERELGBHE
22,610,000557T°



18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. MEiEATIZER @
Summarised financial information of the associates BEATZHMBEEREE
Simagi Simagi
As at 31 December
®W+=ZB=+—H
2024 2023
—EME i T =i
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Current assets TMENEE 134,951 124,481
Non-current assets ERENEE 103,226 155,256
Current liabilities ViEI=RE (10,076) (1,333)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in the BAREBEPBE AR EREER
associate:
Net assets of Simagi SimagifV;F & E 228,101 278404
Proportion of the Group's effective interest IEAREEEEERAI LA 6.82% 6.82%
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial R4z & B FRER 2 IREE
statement 15,556 18,987
For the year ended 31 December
HE+_-_A=1+—HIL=EE
2024 2023
i 111 = 3 =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAERT FAET
Revenue WA 6,105 8,611
Impairment loss on loan receivables FEUN SR B F5 18 (15,706) (13,020)
Profit/(loss) for the year REEHEAN (F518) 1,727 (6,148)
Other comprehensive expense for the year AEEHMEZEMAS (52,030) (18,119)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AEEEMEL4REE (50,303) (24,267)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG MBS IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_NHF+_F=+—HIEFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18.

Summarised financial information of the associates (Continued)

REEAT 2 Em
BEARZHBEREE (@)

(&)

Top Insight Top Insight
As at 31 December
®w+=ZBA=+—H
2024 2023
—“E-mE 2 =&
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Current assets MENEE 108,689 100,789
Non-current assets JERENEE 207,000 219,205
Current liabilities mENEE (96,998) (95,026)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in the EAREBEPBE AR ERER
associate:
Net assets of Top Insight Top InsightfY & & 218,691 224,968
Proportion of the Group's effective interest AR S E B R R LL A 34.70% 34.70%
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial iz & B #RE 2 BREE
statement 75,886 78,064
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-_A=1+—HLEE
2024 2023
—E_ME TEI=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Revenue WA 10,937 9,992
Change in fair value on investment property KEYEN T EEE (12,200) (2,300)
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive AEE BB w8 REE
(expense)/income for the year (FIs2) Wz #BzE (6,277) 2,649

CHI A EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.

EiEEmEREERERAR



18.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of the associates (Continued)

BJEG

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.

b/

)
i

18

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE
REEAR 2D @

BMEATZMBEMME (@)

b

As at 31 December

Yirhy = o =
2024 2023
—ENE Py s
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Current assets RENEE - 201,178
Non-current assets JERBEE - 68,573
Current liabilities VEI=NE = (194,425)
Non-current liabilities ElE=N ] - (16,773)
Reconciled to the Group's interest in the BAREBMPBE AR EREER
associate:
Net assets of BJEG FERIEZNFEE - 58,553
Proportion of the Group’s effective interest SR EE B R RAILLAE N/A RiEF 51.39%
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial R4z & Bk KR 2 IREE
statement - 30,090
From the
For the date of deemed
period ended acquisition to
1 August 31 December
2024 2023
BAR1E
HE Ut iE B HAE
“ETME FE_EBT=F
NB—HIE S
HAM =Ea—E
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Revenue A 2,895 4,059
(Loss)/profit for the period AHR (B548) mA) (21,332) 4,593
Other comprehensive expense for the period ~ ZNEAE 2 E Rz (935) (774)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income AEEEE (IR WaE
for the period 4828 (22,267) 3,819
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

19.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FVTOCI 19. BATFEEBEMZEWAT
IRZRERE
2024 2023
—E-ME .- St 2
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Unlisted investments: JELEMEE !

— Equity securities —RARE S 54,497 61,000
Particulars of investments in unlisted equity securities held by the AEEFEF LTRABSKENFES
Group are as follows: wr

Proportion of ownership interest Fair value
FiE R 2 tthl AT
Place of
Name Bur incorporation 2024 2023 2024 2023
SME I “ECmE —E°= —ECmE —E”=
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Imagi Brokerage Limited Imagi Brokerage Limited Hong Kong &4 9.69% 9.69% 23,000 49,200
Era Bright Limited REBERAT Hong Kong &7 15.84% 15.84% 14,600 11,800
Beijing Ever Grand International TREZERHERE N/A N/A
Financial Leasing Co. Limited BRAF The PRC 1] 51.39% TEA 16,897 TER
54,497 61000

The above unlisted equity investments represent investments in
unlisted equity securities issued by private entities established in
Hong Kong and the PRC. In the opinion of the Directors, they were
designated as equity investments at FVTOCI as the investments are
held for long term strategic purposes and not expected to be realised
within one year from the end of the year.

The details of fair value measurement are disclosed in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.

FEEEREEEEEARAR

LHIF ERAKREERERE AT
PRIz Fh NBREFT 1T 2 IF LR AE
SFoERRA HRNRERIFRABKE
By ZEIF LHRAREBIIEERBZAT
BEEEMEERAIRZRERE B
BB FRE—FATEER-

AP ESEFBRER G SRR
34o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 20. HATEEBIESIRZERM
BE
2024 2023
—EME TEC=HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Listed equity and debt securities: THRARERERES
— Hong Kong —&8 3,244 4,008

The details of fair value measurement are disclosed in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AT B BHBEBI AR
340

LOAN RECEIVABLES 21. EWRE™R
2024 2023
ZEZME T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Loan receivables (Note) FEWER (15D 9,500 10,000
Less: Impairment allowance B ORERE (755) -
8,745 10,000
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEENDNA
Non-current assets ERENEE 2,762 =
Current assets MENEE 5,983 10,000
8,745 10,000
Note: N

As at 31 December 2023, such loan receivables carried a fixed interest rate of
10% per annum with the maturity date of April 2024 and were guaranteed by their
shareholders.

During 2024, the Group and the borrowers entered into the supplemental agreement
whereby the borrowers and its guarantors agreed to repay the principal amount
by installment on or before March 2026. A fixed interest rate of 10% per annum
will be charged once the repayment terms have been breached. Up to the date of
this report, an additional repayment of HK$3,000,000 has been received after the
reporting period.

RIB=F+"F=1+—H ZZERKEREE
FEFRAE10% FIHHA - —NEr B IR ERS
R

KRB MF > AEBBERATLHER R &
It ERAREERARER S E=A%2
AN HEEA SRR - — BERERER RIZEEF
FRI0%UEHIE - EEARE HE NIRESHRE
H{EX3,000,0008 T BRI NERR °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG MBS IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

21. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements in impairment allowance of loan receivables are as

21. BRWER @

REWERZ BREREESWT

follows:

2024 2023
i 1= 3 BRI
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
FMsE FAT FAET
Balance at beginning of the year FY 2 iR - 154,906

Amounts recognised during FERRERSREFEE
the year, net 8 755 -
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries BIELEHRB AR - (149,727)
Exchange realignment FERaAEE - (5,179)
Balance at end of the year FR MR 755 =

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk exposure
arising from loan receivables are set out in note 34 to the consolidated

ERAEREERRKHBREREEZ
EEBRKAEERBRZFRRINRETH

financial statements. HRFEMIZEIA 0
22. INVENTORIES 22. F&
2024 2023
—EImE —EBC=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Raw materials B 10,883 10,569
Work in progress EE G 11 180
Finished goods SEAL M 9,391 8,652
20,285 19,401
23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. BZREWR
2024 2023
—E-ME —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Trade receivables from trading business KEEZEKRZEZEWE 9,760 15,456
Less: Impairment allowance BB (457) (467)
9,303 14,989

The credit period granted to customers ranged from O to 60 days.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.

FEEEREEEEEARAR
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24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRa M IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

B EKF @

RERSARIGER B2 E 5 BUGR G0k
B ZERECDATIT

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables net of impairment allowance
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:
2024 2023
—ZEIME i e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F#ET
0-30 days 0-30H 4,786 7A865
31-90 days 31-90H 2,499 3,685
91-270 days 91-270H 1,334 3,214
Over 270 days 270H M £ 684 725
9,303 14,989

RE SRR BEREESNT :

The movements in impairment allowance on trade receivables are as

follows:

2024 2023
—ETDmE T =HF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
=2 FAT FAET
Balance at beginning of the year T 2 48R 467 752

Amounts recognised/(reversed) FRRER, (D) SEBFRE 8
during the year, net 226 (283)
Amounts written-off during the year ~ FE RIS SR (235) 2
Exchange difference ERERE (1) -
Balance at end of the year TR 4R 457 467

ARAAEREEBRMHE ZRUGRES
ZEERBRZE—TH BN GV R
w&IIEE34

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk exposure
arising from trade receivables are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 24, HMEBWR -RERFEMRIE
PREPAYMENTS
2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Other receivables (Note) EHanpEWr (HsH) 12,589 15,079
Prepayments TR RRIE 1,552 1,354
Prepayments for purchases of goods BEERENRIE 6,949 6,906
Deposits & 642 231
21,732 23,570
Less: Impairment allowance B BB (5,190) (2,593)
Total other receivables, deposits and HERR - 12 K a1 TIB4R 28
prepayments 16,542 20,977
Analysed for reporting purposes: B EENDNA
Non-current assets JERENEE 450 =
Current assets TRENE E 16,092 20,977
16,542 20,977
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

24.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 24. HthEUWR e RAEMRIE
PREPAYMENTS (Continued) (&)
Note: BT
Included in other receivables as of 31 December 2024 represented an other HEZZWE+ZB=+—H > st AEMEKR
receivable before provision for impairment loss of HK$9,794,000 (2023: Z BRI BN E D B — 2 B L E e R (E S
HK$12,804,000) from an independent supplier of the Distribution Segment. The 1B BRI EL hFEWERO,794,00078 T (CE =4 ©
balance initially arose from prepayments made for supplies of goods which the 12,804,000787T) o 45ERTH ¥ R B RER B A3 TR
supplier was unable to deliver. In March 2023, the Group and the supplier entered EYHEBNRTIE RS =F=F  REmSH
into a deed of settlement whereby the supplier agreed and its sole owner guaranteed [ER T AR Bl HEREE R A —EE
to repay the outstanding balance in next twelve months. In March 2024, a Director ARER AL+ ZEANEEREEEGF -
provided the personal guarantee to it in favour of the Group. The statutory demand “ME=Z/R —REEUFEEAZTHEARRBEA
letters have been served to the supplier and its sole owner and will take further legal R BRI R R EME R AR H AT AR
actions if necessary. As at 31 December 2024, provision for impairment loss on such N ERFREGE— D AR ITE R S TIUF
other receivable of HK$5,190,000 (2023: HK$2,593,000) was made. +ZA=+—8> BfEHBRMEME U RERS
FEH55,190,000/ 7T (CE =4 : 2,593,000/7T) °
The movements in impairment allowance on other receivables and REMERERIZE 2 BB EEET
deposits are as follows:
2024 2023
—E-mE 2 =&
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
=3 FAT FAET
Balance at beginning of the year FY 2 iR 2,593 8,305
Amounts recognised during the year  FEREZISZE 8 2,597 3,359
Amounts written-off during the year ~ ERHiEE SR - (50)
Amounts derecognised upon the RIS ARBAR IR
Deconsolidation Gl - (9,212)
Exchange realignment PE R aaEE - (309)
Balance at end of the year FR MR 5,190 2,593

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk exposure
arising from other receivables and deposits are set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

DEPOSITS PLACED WITH NON-BANK FINANCIAL 25. RN IERITERMEEZTF
INSTITUTIONS, SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS FEHRITERURBRE R
AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEZEEY
Deposits placed with non-bank financial institutions were for trading in BE_ZE_WF+_"_A=+—HIEFE>
securities and interest bearing at prevailing market rates ranging from EHRIERITSREE ERAEES
0.00% to 0.58% (2023: 0.58% to 0.89%) per annum for the year BETRRTHSBANNEFE  FHREN
ended 31 December 2024. F0.00%ZE0.58% (ZBE-=4F: 0.58% =
089%) ©
There were no short-term bank deposits with maturity of more than BE_ B NF+_B=+—HILFET
three months for the year ended 31 December 2024. For 2023, short- EIHEBB=EA ZEHIRTER R
term bank deposits with maturity of more than three months carried TE=F BB =EA 2 AR
interest at market rates ranging from 4.89% to 5.35%. TEFETBENENF489%E5.35%5t
Bo
Bank balances (including bank deposits with maturity of less than BE_ZE_WF+_A=+—HIEE>
three months) carried interest at prevailing market rates ranging from R1T4ERR (BRAERLVN=ER ZR177F
0% to 4.12% (2023: 0% to 4.75%) per annum for the year ended 31 ) WIRITHBHET B FFENFORE
December 2024. 412% (CBZ=5F : 0%Z4.75%) °
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. B KRHEHMELR
2024 2023
—ENE TEC=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Trade payables B A REMAR 2,383 4,697
Accruals FESTE A 8,050 9,079
Receipts in advance (Note a) FEUGRIE (FiEFa) 6,658 10,456
Other payables (Note b) HAREAR (fi5Eb) 7,263 6,609
24,354 30,841
Notes: S
(a) As at 31 December 2024, the balance mainly represents rental payment of (a) RIE_WNE+_B=1+—H &HFE
HK$6,575,000 (2023: HK$10,010,000) received in advance from a leasee IENAEAFE A R EWERE R FTsTRE =44
for a three-year lease as stated in the agreement. HAZ ¥8{IF0%6,575,0008 7T CE =4 :
10,010,00037%) ©
(b) Included in other payables as at 31 December 2024 represented the (b) HE_Z-_WNE+ZHA=+—H A

amount due to an invested entity of HK$2,346,000 (2023: HK$2,311,000)
which is unsecured, carries a fixed interest rate of 4.762% per annum and
repayable on demand.

HMEN R MBS R I REERBTRR
2,346,0007870 (ZF =4 : 2,311,0007
70) > EAEIRR 3% E R ) F4.762% 5T
BRAGERIEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 26. BESRHEMEMR @
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the REERFR B REMENREEES
following ageing analysis, based on invoice dates, as at the end of B0 EER SRR R DITNT -

reporting period:

2024 2023
—E_IEF —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
0-30 days 0-30H 705 4,109
31-90 days 31-90H 1,031 95
91-270 days 91-270H 136 440
Over 270 days 270H M £ 511 53
2,383 4,697
27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. THE&®E
Lease payments Present value of lease payments
HER® HERHZRE
2024 2023 2024 2023
“E-mE “ET=F —E_ME “ET=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTiEr TR i
Within 1 year —&ER 2,280 = 2,003 =
Between 1 and 2 years —EFRE 2,280 = 2,137 =
Between 2 to 5 years MEERE 1,061 = 1,036 =
5,621 -
Less: Future finance charges B RIS (445) -
Present value of lease liabilities HESEZEE 5,176 =
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 & : RI2EBAEREESE
months (shown under current liabilities) Gl rEas) (2,003) -
Amount due for settlement after 12 months ~ RI2{EB B EMEELEE 3,173 =
At 31 December 2024, the Group's incremental borrowing rate was ﬁ\_v “HE+ZA=1+—H KEEHN
6.5% (2023: Nil). The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed EETMFERCSN CET=F 1) of
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. E%% VER DT 4R & B SR AR M 534

IEE °

12 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRa M IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

BORROWINGS 28. B
2024 2023
—E_Mmg T e
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Current and Unsecured RN IR
Bank borrowing (Note) IRTTER (5D 2,767 L
Note: N
The bank borrowing as at 31 December 2024 was bearing at floating interest rates RIZZTWNE+ZB=+—H RITERENTF
ranged from 3.57% to 3.92% (2023: Nil) per annum and was denominated in RMB. 357%E3IN% (CE=F | WEEERREE
WANREEHE
DEFERRED TAX 29. REMRIA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses RIBEHR AEEEARPHRIBEEIE
of HK$312,010,000 (2023: HK$306,950,000) available for offset 312,010,000t (& =4 : 306,950,000
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in 1) B BN IEIEARICEF] o RS AR F)
respect of the unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of future /m%’ﬁbﬁ‘ﬁ A I A ?Tﬂi@]ﬁﬁﬁlﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁ
profit streams. Except for an amount of HK$24,700,000 (2023: SOIRIEFR I E EE © [R24,700,00078 75 (&
HK$37,607,000) which can be carried forward for 5 years, the — =% :37,607,000787T) Z%gﬁjmﬁﬁﬁ
remaining unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. Ah BR T RENBRIBRE A ERARAS R
SHARE CAPITAL 30. R&#s
Number Nominal
of shares value
Rin& B m{E
'000 HK$'000
TR FAT
Authorised: VAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each EREE0.1BTT TiEh
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, \_';:_E A— EI N
1 January 2024 and e s o e = | e (B
31 December 2024 :‘3_@5 B—Bk
“ETOF+ "B =+—H 4,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITREE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREE0IE T Bk
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, ’3_7 T =i —{E
1 January 2024 and =l S = e
31 December 2024 :‘vﬁ_ﬂﬁ B—Bk
-l s == S = (5 1,687,303 168,730

e then 129
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 31. KEHERH
As a lessor, the Group’s investment properties are leased to a number EAHBA REBZREY) L TIERY
of tenants for the remaining period of 1.9 years to 4.6 years (2023: 2.9 B19FEZEAGE (CT =4 29F4! 9f|5) EI’]
to 4.9 years). TR FETMEE
The undiscounted minimum rent income receivables under non- Ao RS EE - 2 RANRREREIL
cancellable operating leases are as follows: WAl :
2024 2023
fnl= el 1= 3 =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Within one year —FR 4,719 6,601
In the second year -l 4,385 6,660
In the third year ”*_E 252 6,432
In the fourth year FINE 252 1,806
In the fifth year BHE 98 121
9,706 21,620
32. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 32. BEXRAKIE
2024 2023
—EmE TET=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition FhUKBEMIZE ~ BE K2t 2 B 5T
of property, plant and equipment contracted ~ ABRA 4R S BT RMREE
for but not provided in the consolidated ZEXRME
financial statements 134 1,073
33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 33. EHAREFIE

The operating subsidiaries in Hong Kong joined the mandatory
provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all employees in Hong
Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Scheme
Ordinance. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions at 5% of the relevant payroll
of the employees to the MPF Scheme, capped at HK$1,500 per
employee per month. The obligation of the Group with respect of MPF
Scheme is to make the required contribution under the MPF Scheme.
The retirement benefits costs charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss represent contributions paid and payable to the MPF
Scheme by the Group.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEERENEEEERAE

FERREBECEZMBRARDBAES
BESSHEBFIMAESE (BREDS
B)) - REARFIE ATRESE
RGI S HE AR R EERERL 18
BEFBHZEERBUISEAUEEZTA
B WHEAER T BEDRRA - RER
R s B Z %A 1%3‘:&1%%%’??&1%%
BERFN 5% maEE St EIFHERR &
HEESARRE 51,5008 - AEEIREE
BiEE BT AE . EERRERED S
BIEHRPATR MR - N iE G IBm R PRI Z
BRREMNRATEAEEMBRREEEN
SREE R



33.

34.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued) 33. EHRwAIEE @
The PRC employees of each subsidiary in the PRC are members of FEENBARZAEEEE2HBHE
the pension scheme operated by the PRC local government. The BT I 2 RIRE 5T 8 o Z P E B
PRC subsidiary is required to contribute the certain percentage of the NEERZEEERRMFMZETE DL
relevant payroll of these employees to the pension scheme to fund the ERAEHEHAUSENHE c ANEH
benefits. The only obligation for the Group with respect to the pension Rz RkEstE Taz—SEAEY
scheme is the required contributions under the pension scheme. BIRESTEIFRE 2 R
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 34. EMIA
Capital risk management BARERERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group AEBEEAEEAR LBERAEE B
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the R ELE B BB LER MRS
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity BFRAREERE KO o REEZ EREE
balance. The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which BEFER EERTAREMER REAA
include the bank and other borrowings and equity attributable to A AELER (BEEEITRA
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and BERRE) - BEESEEEEEANA
accumulated losses. The management reviews the capital structure T B FE R & AAERE 2 JE b T 28 B A4S
by considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with each B BRI NEBREEEE TR
class of capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its overall capital B ER N ELEIRE AR M RS A
structure through new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or ENE BB S » A BB SRR A TS
the redemption of existing debt. The Group’s overall strategy remains o
unchanged throughout the year.
Categories of financial instruments ERITAEZER
2024 2023
—TImE e s
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost AT EY SREE 39,304 66,121
Equity investments at FVTOCI BAFESBEMEEmIASER
ZRERE 54,497 61,000
Financial assets at FVTPL BATFESBERY R CHEE 3,244 4,008
97,045 131,129
Financial liabilities AR
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RBIHR AT ENSREaE 25,639 20,385
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity investments at
FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, financial assets at amortised cost
(including trade receivables, loan receivables, other receivables and
deposits, cash and cash equivalents and deposits placed with non-
bank financial institutions) and financial liabilities at amortised cost
(including trade payables, other payables and accruals, borrowings
and lease liabilities). Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes.

The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2024, the Group'’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing
bank borrowing with floating interest rates. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk. As at 31
December 2023, the Group was not exposed to significant interest
rate risk. However, the management closely monitors its exposure to
future cash flow risk as a result of change on market interest rate and
will consider hedging changes in market interest rates should the need
arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk as at 31 December 2024 was
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of People’s Bank of China Rate
arising from the Group’s bank borrowing with floating interest rates.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis was prepared assuming the relevant
financial instruments outstanding as at 31 December 2024 were
outstanding for the year ended 31 December 2024. If the interest
rate of borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group's post-tax loss for the
year ended 31 December 2024 would have decreased/increased by
HK$280,000.

Currency risk

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, there were no significant foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities. Therefore, the
management considered that the Group was not exposed to significant
currency risk.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through its investments in listed
equity securities and unlisted investments. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risks. The Group’s price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments listed in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
equity investments. In addition, the Group has appointed a special
team to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

34. EMIA®

MHERREEERRER (&)
FIEmREE (7
HRED

RAESREDTHREN S -MEFE+—
B=+—H HEKRBEENTRITANE
EENE+A=+—HLEEE—H
KBE HERZFZELFH,THEI0OEE
REFFAH MBS BRI BIAEEE
EE_NE+"A=+—HLEEEZER
&SRR R D, 18 1280,000 7T °

B mEE

AP mERTESE Lo A=
B BREAMSMEH ENEREERS
B Eit BEERA AEELRANE
KM

Bt &% E 5

FERBBH EHRAZHFRERIFLT
L ERRERRRE - EEERBER TR
BRI EA S EEHER - AEEER
EREEEFREEBMERZFERA
Bl EmAIRA T AR E - IE5h A5
E&HE—E)/)EERERERILTEYS
ERE BT R
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Other price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to price risk of listed equity securities at the reporting date.
The analysis is based on the assumption that the relevant index had
changed by 10% with all other variables held constant and all the
listed equity securities moved according to the historical correlation
with the index. If the prices of the respective instruments had been
10% higher/lower, and held other variables constant, their impacts on
the post-tax loss for the years are as follows:

EMTH®
HMiSEREEEEREE @)
B @ mLeE (4
SR E T

MFSRE DT IRIE RS Bl LR
B ERERMEE ° DT 2T BRI E
BEFN0%MATE E S MR~ 2 DUk
FiE LR ABHRE RSB 2 A8/
MEE 2 RRMFL o HAER TARER
18I0, R 10% T E M MR 2> A
FRZFEHHRBERENTZENT

2024 2023
—EmE BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Listed equity securities LR AES
Increase/decrease a0, mb 271 335
Credit risk and impairment assessment 1EEE R REFFE

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables,
loan receivables, other receivables and deposits, deposits placed with
non-bank financial institutions, and cash and cash equivalents.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31 December
2024 and 2023 in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Loan receivables

The Group has closely monitored the recoverability of loan receivables
from the loan borrowers, including but not limited to timely review loan
borrower’s financial performance, follow up action if become default,
etc. In this regards, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk
is low.

Trade receivables

The Group measures impairment loss of trade receivables based on
HKFRS 9 simplified approach at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits attributed to customers are reviewed regularly. The Group has
establish a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical
credit losses experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

Other receivables and deposits (other than deposit at bank)

Other receivables and deposits (other than deposit at bank) are
classified as financial assets at amortised cost. For other receivables
and deposits, the management of the Group makes periodic collective
assessment as well as individual assessment on the recoverability of
other receivables and deposits based on historical settlement records
and past experience. For the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023, the Group individually assessed the ECL for other receivable
amounting to HK$9,794,000 (2023: HK$12,804,000). Except for this,
other receivables and deposits were considered to be of low credit risk
and thus no ECL was recognised.

EHMITHR®
HMisAREEEEREE @)
EEAR R BTG (45)
Y E

FEEERTBEREERERABBU AT
EER > BEERRI REFRE M E™R
AR HEARERBIERS B

ERIL EERRAERNEERERER(E

B Zrt

FEBRBEEEMHRES ZERFERHIEIE
% BRENFHNEREESEENTE
stB B 5 EUGRER ER 1R - N ERE M
WERPR AEEMEEETERNEEE
AU EREEBEEEEE BENES
BRI EEMER A EEEENEE
HESEERECREIEEER Wit

BB AREERENEERBEEEEFL
o
B ERA Rtz (RITEAGFIN

Hi R K3z E GRITEMERIN Th D
ERREENAAENEMEE - LEM
B RREMS  AEREEBREE
LEMRHRRBELR BE MBI
& B9 PJ IR [0 & BR 1T RE #A1 ?én:FTEEz

B - BHE_ S NER_T_=F
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. EMIA®@

13

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Bank balances and deposited with non-bank financial institutions

The Group’s bank balances and deposits are deposited with banks
and non-bank financial institutions in Hong Kong and the PRC and the
Group has limited the exposure to any single financial institution. The
credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are
banks and non-bank financial institution with good credit-rating.

Concentration of credit risk

Among these receivables, the Directors specifically identify
considerable credit risk primarily arising from trade receivables and
loan receivables. The concentration risk associated with these assets is
further analysed in the following paragraph.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had certain concentration
of credit risk as 0.2% (2023: 34%) and 43% (2023: 47%) of the
aggregate carrying amount of trade receivables from the Group’s
largest and the five largest customers respectively, while that as 53%
(2023: 50%) and 100% (2023: 100%) of the aggregate carrying
amount of loan receivables from the Group’s largest and top five
borrowers.

The management exercises due care in granting credit and checking
the background of these counterparties on a regular basis and closely
monitors the subsequent settlement of the customers. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Measurement of ECL

The Group measures loss allowance for trade receivables based on
lifetime ECLs. For other financial assets, the Group assessed the loss
allowance for receivables that are not credit-impaired collectively
based on 12 months ECL and lifetime ECL, and assessed receivables
that are credit-impaired individually based on lifetime ECL.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRa M IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Measurement of ECL (Continued)

The Group has conducted an assessment of ECLs according to
forward-looking information and used appropriate models and a large
number of assumptions in its expected measurement of credit losses.
These model and assumptions related to the future macroeconomic
conditions and borrower’s creditworthiness (e.g., the likelihood of
default by lessees/customers and corresponding losses). The Group
has adopted judgement, assumptions and estimation techniques in
order to measure ECLs according to the requirements of accounting
standard such as criteria for judging significant increases in credit risk,
definition of credit-impaired financial asset, parameters for measuring
ECLs and forward-looking information.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the
following categories:

34. EMIA®

MERKREERRKRER (@)

15 B /m 5 R B B TS (4

SIBEAIEERE (&

FEEDREAETERETRREER
BaTE > W HRIEE

ABERAKBZRR ZEEAKR

SRR
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E‘ﬁﬁ%’léiéfiﬂ)

& STEREBAEE
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RERSEARR R ERAB B EE (ED
EHANBY, TR RABEEERIAEN) 48
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=gz ﬂtmaai“ﬂﬂﬁﬁffﬁﬁ EEBIETA
SN2 K
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Finance lease and
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Internal credit rating Description trade receivables Other financial assets

I EE TR i RMEHERE 7 RN HitvgmEE

Stage 1 The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not Lifetime ECL - not credit- 12-month ECL
credit risk since initial recognition and that are not credit- impaired
impaired upon origination.

e HFFNENRARERBNIRABIREERR FHRRNEREERS EREHEEES
EREERUREERE. -FEERE

Stage 2 There has been a significant increase in credit risk since Lifetime ECL - not credit- Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired
initial recognition through information developed impaired
internally or external resources.

IR BEBERERNSINIERNERFRBUT FHRAEREERS FHRNEHREESRS
EERREEEMEM. -FEEHE —FEERE

Stage 3 There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired. Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired

EoRE BHBERTEEARERE. FHAEREERS FHREHREERS

-BEERE -BEEHE

Stage 4 There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery.

ElE BRBERNEEARRRENERE rEETEER  SBETHH B T
LEEEER
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. EMIA®@

MHHERAEEEBRRER (8

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

15 B /3 2 R B 1B 5F 1 (A

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

EIERH1E B R SRR B 5 B TFRRT 1S
=

Exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables

TREHARAEEmENEERR MU
RIBEI AV E Z W TRI E B8

The following table provides information about the Group’s exposure to
credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables according to their past due

13

dates: &g
2024
—EE
Expected Gross carrying Loss
Trade receivables: loss rate amount allowance
B 2R TEHRESIE R IRMEARME E5ia1E
% HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Neither past due nor impaired SRR RE 0.50 2,960 15
Past due less than 30 days #IHEA/DHR30H 1.00 1,859 18
Past due for 30 days or more but less EIEA30H A £
than 90 days B052908 2.00 2,550 51
Past due for 91 days or more but less ZEEA91H T
than 270 days B/054270H 2.73 1,371 37
Past due for 271 days or more BEHA271H S £ 32.97 1,020 336
9,760 457
2023
B4
Expected Gross carrying Loss
Trade receivables: loss rate amount allowance
B SR SELE)SEEES IREARE BIIEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET FAET
Neither past due nor impaired AT ERE 0.50 9,542 48
Past due less than 30 days w30 1.01 1,479 15
Past due for 30 days or more but less ZIEA30H 81 _E{B/j290
than 90 days H 2.02 1,681 34
Past due for 91 days or more but less E1HA91H St EB/DHL
than 270 days 270H 7.79 1,695 132
Past due for 271 days or more #mER2718 8 £ 22.47 1,059 238
15,456 467

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRa M IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. EfMIA®
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) BHERAREEREREE (B)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERERREFE (&
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BRA R R A B EE
The following table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk based TRIIRENRAEBBERFIEBRNRA
on the Group’s policy and year-end staging classification. The amounts EERMKEFAEMESR D -FI25EREEA
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets. SR EENRBARE-
2024
ZECME
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
12-months not credit credit Simplified
ECL impaired impaired approach Total

FHEERE2 BREEAEZ
128A  FHAESR  FHAES

TRHEERE EEEHE ZERHE k{7 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TR TER
Loan receivables FEBER - 9,500 - - 9,500
Trade receivables ERe - - - 9,760 9,760
Other receivables and deposits Eulideéren 3,437 - 9,794 = 13,231
Cash and cash equivalents RekFRESEN 13,215 - - - 13,215
16,652 9,500 9,794 9,760 45,706
2023
TET=F
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12-months not credit credit Simplified

ECL impaired impaired approach Total

FEEREZ CBREEAEZ
12BE  SHNEE SRR

TEREERE EEFE EERHE il fast

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TiEr FTiEr FiEr THET

Loan receivables FEBER 10,000 = - - 10,000

Trade receivables BRERT - = - 15,456 15,456

Other receivables and deposits HitElE kge 2,506 = 12,804 = 15,310
Deposits placed with non-bank financial  FAUA JESRITRRIEIE 2 7R

institutions 2 - - - 2

Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 28413 - = - 28413

40921 - 12,804 15,456 69,181
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. EMIA®@

MHHERAEEEBRRER (8

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERER R EFE ()
TRIEHAAERN S MER_"Z
CEE+A=t+—HREZEREH
fthIEUR =R FE IR E R PR mER AV S & ALk

The following table provides information about the Group’s exposure to
credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables, other receivables and loan
receivables as at 31 December 2024 and 2023:

FRHMEERIRIER

2024
ZZImE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—MEE B FREER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TER TR
Loan receivables FEKER
Lifetime ECL not credit impaired IHEEREZEHRTEDR
=88
Expected loss rate B - 7.95% - 7.95%
Individually assessed gross receivables FERIRREle e - 9,500 - 9,500
Provision &E - 755 - 755
Individually assessed net receivables RERHERIEE T - 8,745 - 8,745
Trade receivables RN
Lifetime ECL not credit impaired IHEEREZ ERRTER
ZE5E
Expected loss rate TEEIEE 1.14% 3.64% 90% 4.68%
Collectively assessed gross receivables e Rl e 7,370 2,059 331 9,760
Provision B
Balance at beginning of the year FH 24555 9 285 86 467
Amounts recognised/(reversed) ERER/ (k) 55
during the year, net (12) (210) 448 226
Amounts written-off during the year FRiEEERE - - (235) (235)
Exchange difference ERERE - - (1) (1)
Balance at end of the year FRZ 4 84 75 298 457
Collectively assessed net receivables e Rl e e 7,286 1,984 33 9,303
Other receivables HAtREWR
Lifetime ECL credit impaired BiEEREZFHNTER
ZE5E
Expected loss rate B - - 52.99% 52.99%
Individually assessed gross receivables BB LRI B EE - - 9,794 9,794
Provision b
Balance at beginning of the year FHZ 4555 - - 2,593 2,593
Amounts recognised during the year FREDREHE - - 2,597 2,597
Balance at end of the year ERZ AR - - 5,190 5,190
Individually assessed net receivables BB ARG FRE - - 4,604 4,604

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

34. EMIA®

MERKREERRKRER (@)

15 B /3 52 R B 1B 5P 1 (#2)

2023
o R o
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—IRBEER EIRPEER 5= IRPEER 45t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET TiEr THT FHEn
Loan receivables FERE
12-month ECL 12{BR TR EAE
Expected loss rate TEREIBE 0.00% a = 0.00%
Individually assessed net receivables ERFHERIREEUE SR 10,000 = = 10,000
Provision b - - - -
Individually assessed gross receivables R LRI 8RR 10,000 = = 10,000
Trade receivables BRREER
Lifetime ECL not credit impaired IHEEREZERNTEDR
ZEiE
Expected loss rate FEiPEEE 0.76% 10.86% 68.14% 3.02%
Collectively assessed gross receivables e R [l e e 12,702 2,628 126 15,456
Provision &E
Balance at beginning of the year FEN 2R 124 % 532 752
Amounts recognised/(reversed) FRRED/ () SETE
during the year, net (28) 189 (444) (283)
Amounts written-off during the year FREEEEE - - @ @)
Balance at end of the year FRZER % 285 86 467
Collectively assessed net receivables e R il e 12,606 2,343 40 14,989
Other receivables HitREWR
Lifetime ECL credit impaired BiEEREZFHRTER
=858
Expected loss rate BB - = 20.25% 20.25%
Individually assessed gross receivables BRI HERIRE I EEE - = 12,804 12,304
Provision &
Balance at beginning of the year FH 24555 - = 8305 8305
Amounts recognised during the year EREDLE = = 3,859 3,859
Amounts written-off during the year FRitEEEE - - (50) (50)
Amounts derecognised upon the R IHREARBALE
Deconsolidation DB - - (9,212) (9,212)
Exchange realignment ERAE - (309) (309)
Balance at end of the year ERZEERR - - 2,593 2,593
Individually assessed net receivables BB MR T = = 10,211 10,211

Individually assessed trade receivable of HK$835,000 (2023:
HK$490,000) was written off under stage 4 of internal credit rating for

the year ended 31 December 2024.

A s MifEEaE = 5| = o (E)ilEEEED
18 BIET(EH B & 5 FE IR 835,00078 7T (&
Z =1 1 490,000787T) IRIEREMEETARE
O BES ES o LA EH ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. EfTA @
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) MERAKREEBERBEK (B)
Liquidity risk REE £ R R
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and TEEERYESRME NEBBETEKRE
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by SEEBRATEN—TEKFEFNIREE&LIR
the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the SEEY UBEAEREERRERES
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the MENTNFE EEEEREENH A
utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants. KRBT BRI ©
The management considers that liquidity risk is limited after FEEZBEIAERR A BRRENARKIRE
considering the future cash flows of the Group in the foreseeable e BIEIRTTEMNERRER (L
future, including the repayment schedule of bank borrowing as i) \FEEaBREERSHARE=EA
discussed above, lease payments and the short-term liabilities which NEENEHAaER BEEERARSE
are required to be repaid within three months from the end of the FRBAR - RIREIAFR > BN REEIRCTIN
reporting period. The maturity profile of financial liabilities as at the NEmaEnRIEERIT
end of the reporting period, based on undiscounted payments, is as
follows:
2024 —E-mE
Weighted
average Total
effective Within More than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 3-5 years 5 year cash flows amount
IEFEY KRR
BIEH= 1R 1:E 3E54 BESE BN IREfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn FAn TAn TAn TAn TAn
Trade and other payables BSREMENR - 17,696 - - - 17,696 17,696
Borrowing (= 378 2,767 - - - 2,767 2,767
Lease liabilities HERR 6.50 2,280 2,280 1,061 - 5,621 5,176
22,743 2,280 1,061 - 26,084 25,639
2023 TET=F
Weighted
average Total
effective Within More than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 35 years 5 year cash flows amount
T FERES
BIER= 1ER 15E 3E5E HBiRsE TERE REE
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FAr TAn Thn FAn Thn TAn
Trade and other payables ESREMENR - 20,385 - - - 20,385 20,385
20,385 - - - 20,385 20,385

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three
levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

Fair values of financial assets that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

34.

SRTH®
SRMITAMNATESE

APERTS2EERNGERRERR
RSN EEERREMEER A
2B U TREZ ATFEFEERAT
BEHR ATERBRFGHAELTEFRMG
EEMZBABEY A =ERER

B—RBARE  AEERGERRTR
EETS EHAREENE RIS ZRE
CREZHEE) -

BRBARE  BESBEEZHNHE
EEZNRARE S—REABBZR
(G

BoMMAE BEEXEEZ FAHR
BARE

FEEZBRD R EREREEBEMT
HIEREBE AR = @R ER—E
[BHR 2z AT -

S5 1t EENATEHEZEMEE
ZATME

FEEBOEREENSREMRIZAT
BtE - TREHRNAEEZSEMEE
Z N THEZ B $FRIZFER Z (S ER
FeE A BB o

Significant Sensitivity of
Fair value  Valuation techniques unobservable Effect on fair value fair value to
Fair value hierarchy  and key inputs input(s) for increase of inputs the input(s)
LI EART BABEMS ATEHEAREZ
ATHE ATEER FTRALE BRaAUE ATENTE HEE
2024 2023
IZmE “Z°=F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
i TER TER
1. Financial assets at FVTPL
1 BATEEBBEEIIRZER
BE
- Traded on stock exchanges 20 3,244 4008 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in NA N/A N/A
active market
- EERBMRS 4 EETHNEARE TEA TER TER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets that are measured at fair value on a

£RTH @®

TMTANATENE (@

A MBEULTEABEZETHEE

recurring basis (Continued) ZRFE (E)
Significant Sensitivity of
Fair value  Valuation techniques unobservable Effect on fair value fair value to
Fair value hierarchy  and key inputs input(s) for increase of inputs ~ the input(s)
BRI EART BAHBEMY RATEHEAREZ
AFE ATEER FERANE BRAAUE ATENFE BEE
2024 2023
ZEIME ZZI=F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
WE TR TR
2. Equity investments at FVTOCI
2. BATEBBEMEANAT
R RERE
- Unlisted equity investment which 19 23,000 49,200 Level 3 Market approach Enterprise value-to-sales  The higher the ratio, the 5% increase/(decrease)
principally engaged in SFC ratio (“EVIS"): 2.4 higher the fair value; in EVIS would result in
licensed businesses in Hong Kong (2023:8.2) and the higher the discount  increase/(decrease) in fair
discount for lack rate, the lower the fair value of approximately
of marketabilty value HK$300,000 (2023:
(“LOMD"): 15.6% HK$1,500,000)
(2023:15.7%)
- IBUGEENERES F=H WHA TEEEHHEEL LEEHSHATES  LSEM/ (B) 5%
BRI LHRERE Z(TRVS)) < 24 B BREERAL  RERATEMN/
(CE2=£:82) TEEE (12b) #3300,000
RRzmRmEL Br(CEI=F:
B5 (TLomD) - 1,500,000%7%)

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets that are measured at fair value on a

34. ﬁHEIE €=

TR ITANATENE (@

BEEHBEUATFEFAEZZHEE

recurring basis (Continued) ZRFE (E)

Significant Sensitivity of

Fair value  Valuation techniques unobservable Effect on fair value fair value to

Fair value hierarchy ~ and key inputs input(s) for increase of inputs ~ the input(s)

HERATR EARE BAHBEMY ATEHBAREZ
AR ATEER FERAUE BEOAUE ATENRE HEE

2024 2023
ZSIME ZEI=F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
WE TR TR

2. Equity investments at FVTOCI
(Continued)

2. BRATEEEEMZERAY
R2RERE @

- Unlisted equity investment which 19 14,600 11,800 Level 3 Market approach Enterprise value-to- The higher the ratio, the 5% increase/(decrease)
principally engaged in licensed earning ratio (“EV/ higher the fair value; in EV/E would result in
money lending and, manufacturing E"): 6.5and price-to- the higher discount increase/(decrease) in fair
and sales of packaging products in book ratio (“P/B"): 05 rate, the lower the fair value of approximately
Hong Kong and in the PRC (2023: EVIE: 6.1 and value HK$300,000 (2023

17.7) for difference HK$300,000)
business and LOMD:
15.7% (2023: 15.7%)

- IENEBRPENENER F=H  WHA CEBERBANLE LEUSAATES  BESN/ (B)) 5%
BURMERBETRERN (TEVIEL) * 6.5 B BREHEBHA  BERATAEEN/
FEmRERE TR (PBY:05  FEHE (Bi20) 43300,000% 7

(CB-=E: (ZEZ=%:300000
BVEE: 6.1K17.7) (& %)
EBTAMmEEE
2) KLOMD: 15.7%
L?:‘E 157%)
5% increase/(decrease)
in P/B would result in
increase/(decrease) in fair
value of approximately
HK$400,000 2023 N/A)
P/Bimnu/ ) 5%HE
BIEM,/ (50)
”1400,0007%75 Ez
ZZEIRER)
5% increase/(decrease) in
LOMD would result in
increase/(decrease) in fair
value of approximately
HK$100,000 (2023:
HK$165,000)
LOMDIE,/ (Bib) 5%
BERATEEN/
(i) #7100,000% 7T
(CEZ=%F:165000
B

- Unlisted equity investment which 19 16,897 NA level 3 Asset-based approach ~ LOMD: 15.6% The higher discount rate, 5% increase/(decrease) in

principally engaged in finance TBRE the lower the fair value  LOMD would result in

lease and related consutting
services in the PRC

- IERTEREMERERA F=h  BEERE

AR LR ERE

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into
or out of Level 3 for both years.

increase/(decrease) in fair

value of approximately
HK$156,000
LOMD: 15.6% MREMBAIATE  LOMDIEM,/ (Ab) 5%
Foiia BYATELN,/ (]
b) #9156, 000787
KREFEER » S5—4RESE 4R B
B EEA S EHE =R
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

£RTH @®

BZRATEFAEZHIR

Equity Financial
investments assets
at FVTOCI at FVTPL
BATE BATE
BEiRHEM BEiBEE
2EBRATIER SRz
ZIGHERE EREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
At 1 January 2023 N _E_=F—HF—H 93,204 64,419
Purchases = = 29,141
Disposal HeE - (24,719)
Change in fair value recognised in RN EEEF)
— profit or loss b = 3,881
— other comprehensive income -REMEERWA (11,623) -
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries RIEHENHRB AR (19,891) (70,361)
Exchange realignment FE R (690) (2,361)
At 31 December 2023 and A TEBE_=F+"HA=+—AK
1 January 2024 —E-mE—HB—H 61,000 =
Deemed acquisition RIEUREE 15,272 =
Change in fair value recognised in REMEEmEA
other comprehensive income WSR2 A EEE) (21,788) -
Exchange realignment FE R 13 =
At 31 December 2024 RZE_MOE+"H=+—8 54,497 =

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than fair

value

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM  35.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

EMMEERSMEERRAZYH
AR

TRABAEEREED AL A A

B R RIFREEE) -
Lease liabilities Borrowing Total
HERE EEN st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THET

At 1 January 2023 N_E_=%—F—H - 152,645 152,645
Financing cash flows MERS S (2,555) - (2,555)
New lease HHE 4972 = 4972
Interest expense FISR® 39 = 39
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries RIEHERBAT (2,395) (147 542) (149,937)
Foreign exchange translation SNEE R (61) (5,103) (5,164)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 A_E_=F+-"RA=+—HAK

“ETNFE—-B—H - - -
Financing cash flows MERS S (1,220) 2,730 1,510
New lease HHE 6,213 - 6,213
Interest expense FIER® 183 79 262
Foreign exchange translation SNEA R - (42) (42)
At 31 December 2024 RZE_ME+-A=+—H 5,176 2,767 7,943
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

36.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Same as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
during the year the Group had the following transactions with related
parties.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel of the Group,
represented by the directors and chief executive of the Company,
during the year are set out in note 10. The remuneration of directors
and chief executive is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and market trend.

Name and relationship of related parties

The Directors are of the view that the following companies are related
parties:

Name of related parties Relationship

RAE 7 518 Rif&

36.

BBk 5 X 5

WUNR B TR R EAMBOFTIREE > &

EEFEN RIS EITU TR

FTEEBABZHM

FRAEETEEEAE UARABDESER
ETBAERAR ZNE&TIN T

10-EERTBITHABZMET BEM

ZEERBENIATZRRRTHEEE

Fo

R Bk 75 B9 % 78 R R 1R

EFEDR NIRRT

Top Empire International Limited (“TEI")

EHRERARAE (EHMEE)

Dan Dan Mall Limited and Dan Dan Mall (HK) Limited

(collectively known as “Dan Dan Group”)

TEl is jointly owned by Mr. Ng Tin Shui, a Director and his spouse, and
they are substantial shareholders of the Company.
BHABERHEERREAERERRBEAES  BRERAER
BXERRC

Dan Dan Group is wholly owned by Mr. Lam Tsun On, a substantial
shareholder of the Company and a director of a subsidiary.

Dan Dan Mall Limited5&zDan Dan Mall (HK) Limited

(47578 Dan Dan&E &) 7

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 36.

Transactions with related parties

The transactions with related parties during the reporting period are as
follows:

Bt 53X 5 @
HEB A RTRS

RERIN SRS ET 2B T

2024 2023

“EMmE 0l 2 i = teE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAT FET

Purchases of trading goods from TEI* WEHEREEE S E R 54,723 12,053

Sale of trading goods to Dan Dan Group* [E)Dan DanfEEIH & B 5 7 8,308 2,172

Provision of services from Dan Dan Group* Dan Danf= B AR 946 —
* These transactions also constitute connected transactions or continuing ¥ ZER ST ER _ EHRAFBLAZRFRE

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Balances with related parties

The balances due from/to related parties which are trade in nature at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

BORBES 3 S ERER 5 o
SRR 77 BOAS ER

REREHR > BE 7 BRI (RS
AEERINE

2024 2023

—EmE —EC=4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAT FET

Balance due from Dan Dan Group FEUSDan DantEE 4555 3,949 1,377
Prepayment/(balance due) to TEI FETEFRERTB(IRIE, GE5ER) 4,864 (3,261)

DISCONTINUED OPERATION 37

With reference to the Company’s announcement dated 8 February
2024, the result of its financial leasing business consisting of BJEG
Group for the period from 1 January 2023 up to 31 July 2023 (i.e.
the time of the deemed disposal) were presented as discontinued
operation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

The profit for the period/year from the discontinued operation is
analysed as follows:

IFFBEERT

iR AR AT HEA —E _mE_FN\H
ZAE BB =F—F—HEE"_Z
T =FEtHA=1+—HILHR EIREREE
B it IEZEEARCHEREER
EENBRE_T_=F+"_A=+—HL
EEZiFERRRTPEYAIHFELSE
%%O

REFFFBEEEB 2R NEEER
DMTUE

2023

i
NOTE HK$'000
BdsE FHET
Profit from discontinued operation REIHFEREER 2 mt 2,683
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries RIEHERB AR 2 W 38 429
312
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARG MBS IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

37. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

37. IEFEREEE @®

The results of the discontinued operation for the period from 1 FEREXBE S =F—F—H=&
January 2023 to 31 July 2023, which have been included in the 2T —Ft A=+ —HIEBRE LGS
BRRZFENLEEHFTUT ©

consolidated statement of profit or loss, are as follows:

2023
—Eo=F
NOTES HK$'000
FisE FAET

Revenue A 5
Contracts with customers FEREREH 1,942
Interest under effective interest method BEREFZEEETHE 2,595
Total revenue T A 4,537
Cost of revenue S NDZ:N (8,948)
Gross loss Ei8 (4,411)
Other income HAsA 7 1,877
Other expenses Hifasxz (44)
Other gains and losses Holas g8 7 6,674
Administrative expenses TEREZ (6,447)

Reversal of impairment losses under ECL model, net TERRE EBEERIE NRERE

el 8 5,072
Finance costs BT RAS 9 (39)
Profit before taxation FRARAnEF] 2,682
Income tax credit TStk 11 1
Profit for the period ZSHRER 2,683

Profit for the period from discontinued operation has been arrived at

RE I BEE R 2 BB T &M BR

after charging the following items: THIRIEBER
2023
TET=F
HK$'000
FAET
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment BB R FEITE 416
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 1,933
Total depreciation JrEE4RER 2,349
Interest expenses (included in cost of revenue) MEMZ GTARWARZA) 8,294
Staff costs: BT
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EFERFEITHAEFHN 451
Other staff costs HtB T pAs
— Salaries and other benefits — ¥ K H ) 1,690
— Discretionary bonus —BIIBTEAT =
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions —RIRENETE R 253
Total staff costs BT A48%8 2,394

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fRa M IRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

38. HRIELEMEAR

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

With reference to the Company’s announcement dated 8 February
2024, the Group no longer had control over the group of companies
comprised of BJEG and its subsidiaries on 31 July 2023. The assets
and liabilities of the BJEG Group on the date of deemed disposal and
the calculation of the gain arising thereon were as follows:

LRAA AR AR " E_ME—A\H
ZREAEER "B =FtH="+—
BABHEARIIREZERENEASMEMN
NWEERABRIZEG# - I RIEEZEFENR

FHEHRZEERBBUKRIEERN

EETEWT -
HK$'000
FHET
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 28,426
Property, plant and equipment LEN V=Y 1912
Equity investments at FVTOCI AT EFBEMEZEBRASERS
RS 19,891

Finance lease receivables RETRE RN 51,313
Restricted bank deposits SIRHIERITERR 16,394
Loan receivables EWE™R 10,318
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAEWER - e KB =0 32,114
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EEBIERY R TREE 105,431
Deposits placed with non-bank financial institutions FRAIEIRT TSRS 2 7m0 2,163
Cash and cash equivalent RERIREEEY 572
Other payables and accruals HMENRRESTER (46,759)
Tax payable IR E (981)
Lease liabilities HEaR (2,395)
Borrowings T EEN (147,542)
Deposits received from customers BEWREREE (15,586)
Deferred tax liabilities FERIESE (1,678)
Net assets disposed of HEFEE 53,593
Release of translation reserve upon derecognition RIS ARRBERE RS 6,871
Reversal of non-controlling interest upon derecognition RE& RS ARRBELIIRER SRR (33,025)
Gain on deemed disposal of subsidiaries RIEHENB AR 2 Wam 429
The deemed consideration — interest in associates RIERE-REE AR 2 R 27,868
Net cash flow arising on disposal HEELEZIRESREFRE
Cash and cash equivalents of the subsidiaries disposed of HERBARZIREKRIRSEEY (572)

(572)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

39.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the major subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2024 and 2023 are as follows:

39. FEMBRRZHE

A CECNEERCE =+ _HB=+—
B AATETEMBABZEEENT

Proportion of nominal

Place of value of issued
incorporation/ Issued and paid up share capital/registered
Name of subsidiaries registration capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
AR FARFRER RS/
WBARLE S BRITRA R AMEsZEELS  FEER
2024 2023
“BImE Z“BC=
Upmove International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRERERAF e LaR1IET RERR
Elegant Basic Investments Limited BVI Ordinary shares US$100 100% 100%  Investment
REKERRAT EBEUHE BIERI00ET BE
TF Advances Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 100% 100% Treasury investment activities including
money lending
TF Advances Limited &% EERIET BEEREELOERE
Multi Kingdom Investment Limited BVI Ordinary shares US$100 100% 100%  Property investment
Multi Kingdom Investment Limited ~ EBRZEE  ZERKI0ET MERE
Amaze Global Limited BVI Ordinary shares US$1,000 100% 100%  Office management
Amaze Global Limited EBEYHE  EERL000ET PAEER
BEREEMNRBRAT The PRC HK$130,376,000 100% 100% Research & development, manufacturing
(transliterated as Qikang Biological and sales of food additives, instant foods
Technology Limited (“Qikang"))* and beverage in the PRC
RERMBEEMRRARAR" H 130,376,000t 100% 100% HERZAME HES KR
=) W EERHEE
B REYRBERAT The PRC HK$126,310,000 100% 100%  Property investment in the PRC
(transliterated as Livingzone
(Shanghai) Bio-Chem Technology
Co., Ltd (“Livingzone"))*
HETREMREERAR* i 126,310,000/ FENERE
(NIl
Ever Grand Healthcare Company Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$100 100% 100%  Provision of sale of medical and health
Limited products
BEREEEERAR e BidiR100% T REBERERNHE
Tripler Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100% Provision of sale of daily necessities and
HK$1,000,000 personal hygiene and health products
RINBEBRAH &5 E481%1,000,000E7T REBRRREABER

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR G MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

il The English transliteration of Chinese name is included in this report for
reference only and should not be regarded as its official English name.

*

Established in PRC as wholly foreign owned enterprises.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results of the year or
formed a substantial portion of the assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

All major subsidiaries operate principally in Hong Kong except Qikang
and Livingzone.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the financial year.

LITIGATION

With reference to the Company’s announcements dated 13
September 2024 and 20 December 2024, during the year, the Group
has received a civil complaint from the PRC Court filed by BJEG
against the Group in respect of, among others, unpaid registered
capital of US$22,610,000 by the Group. Based on a preliminary
legal assessment from a PRC legal adviser, the Board is of the view
that there is a credible legal basis to resolve the claims. In order
to safeguard the interests of the Group, a legal case has also been
filed with the PRC Court requesting the Court to order the judicial
dissolution of BJEG.

89,

40.

FTEMERBZEE @

: {ERS R E (AR FEARIL °

EERIR LRI HEERERFERESN
BRAEEEEZ TB2HD 2 A REME
NE BRI 2HIEMMB AR 255
RERHFFER R

PRETEWNBARHIEEEBLE &
5 avall Sl

BRI E AR R REERETERNES
BeEal

ZIRMA AR BBEAZE_NFENA
+=ARZE_NFE+"A-+HZA
EHORAFE AEESBFEAPTRE
BILREEZEM (EPEE REEMESR
22,610,000% A4 &£ EIRE 2 REHEH
R RIFEREERRBE 2P A E T
EEERABUENEARRBEEYESEE
R - AREREEZFZ 7FEBFEH
JEBRIR HERER  BSRIART A2 Bl AR RRIE
U
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z_NF+_A=+—HILFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 41, AT ZHHFERRRE B
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
2024 2023
—ENE BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Non-current assets JERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN 11 10
Amounts due from subsidiaries RV B ABIE 249,096 369,510
249,107 369,520
Current assets RENEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments ~ EfFEI 14 R FENFIE 1,215 1,460
Amounts due from subsidiaries RV B ABIE 8,797 6,690
Bank balances and cash IRITHE R IRE 67 18
10,079 8,168
Current liabilities RENBE
Other payables and accruals HEMENRRETER 10,759 10,297
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERMBARRIE 1 1
10,760 10,298
Net current liabilities RENBERRE (681) (2,130)
Net assets BEEE 248,426 367,390
Capital and reserves B as R k15
Share capital iz 168,730 168,730
Reserves & 79,696 198,660
Total equity 4ErEsE 248,426 367,390
Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2025 and are signed ERZE2HRFE-RAZ+ A HESEESI
on its behalf by: S WM TESREREE .
WONG LIK PING SIU WAI BUN
EHF e
Director Director
EE BE

15 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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42.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HE_Z _MF+_F=+—HILFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 41. BNATZHMBRARRKEE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (&)
Movement in the Company’s reserves KATZEEEE
Share  Accumulated
premium losses Total
R St ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
At 1 January 2023 RZE_=F-F—H 1,557,598 (1,352,724) 204,874
Loss and total comprehensive expenses for the year AEEBEREARSER B (6,214) (6,214)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 RIBE_=F+"A=+-HAKR_-%
“mE—-B—H 1,557,598 (1,358,938) 198,660
Loss and total comprehensive expenses for the year AEEBEREARSER - (118,964) (118,964)
At 31 December 2024 RIE-mE+=B=+—H 1,557,598 (1,477,902) 79,696
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 42. REHABRSEE

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, there is no significant
event affecting the Company that have occurred since the end of the
reporting period.

FRAFREEMEBOPTIRESESN BIREGH
GERMUR T EELELERARNTNEKRSE
IHo
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

M E

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
“ETEE B TECCE BT F “ZmE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET TET FTET FTER
RESULTS £
Continuing and discontinued FERIFEREER
operations
Revenue N 66,184 123,630 77,786 57,239 100,977
(Loss)/profit before taxation brifAl (B518) /&7 (342,603) (58576) 44,079 (37,776) (80,794)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fiisi (%) /% (13975) 4,132) (466) 480 (19)
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE FB) /5 (356,578) (62,708) 43613 (37,296) (80,813)
Attributable to: TSRS
Owners of the Company i /N=IEZ 2PN (242,933) (40,619) 7,028 (38,601) (80,813)
Non-controlling interests FEER AR R (113,645) (22,089) 36,585 1,305 =
(356,578) (62,708) 43613 (37,296) (80,813)
As at 31 December
B+ZR=+—H
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
TE-BE B ittt - —2T=F —TImE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET BT FTET FERT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BEE 1,185,716 1,081,497 801,335 502,831 392,456
Total liabilities =L (611,098) (565,751) (264,676) (49,888) (51,575)
574,618 515,746 536,659 452,943 340,881
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to Owners of the  FE(LEZAA TR A
Company 568,063 515,711 503,905 452,943 340,881
Non-controlling interests JEERR R R 6,555 35 32,754 = =
574,618 515,746 536,659 452,943 340,881

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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